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HON PETER COLLIER MLC
MINISTER FOR TRAINING AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

In accordance with section 63 of the Financial Management Act 2006, we hereby submit for your information and
presentation to Parliament, the Annual Report of Challenger Institute of Technology for the financial year ended
31 December 2009.

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 and
the Vocational Education and Training Act 1996.

Paddi Creevey Liz Harris
Chair Managing Director 
Challenger Institute of Technology Challenger Institute of Technology

Date: 9 March 2010 Date: 9 March 2010
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Vision

Challenger Institute of Technology will be a high performing and visionary provider of workforce skills development
and community capacity building.

Mission

To provide the highest quality vocational training, assessment and related services in support of individual career
aspirations and workforce development.

Values

At Challenger we believe that to achieve our vision we require commitment, good practice and shared values. At all
levels of Challenger our activities will be guided by the principles we value:

• Excellence – by achieving high quality outcomes in the development and delivery of all our programs and services.

• Innovation – by developing new and improved ways of doing business.

• Integrity – through ethical and honest behaviour in all activities.

• Empowerment – through devolved decision-making and accountability.

• Accountability – by accepting responsibility for individual actions and outcomes.

• Collaboration – by building positive working relationships both inside and outside the Institute.

Strategic Objectives

Our strategic objectives during the year were to:

• provide industry-driven training and related services to meet workforce needs

• expand the community’s access to relevant vocational education and training and appropriate support services

• build a strong enterprising culture within our workforce to generate commercial and international business and to
access alternative revenue sources

• be an employer of choice, and

• satisfy all statutory and compliance measures and continuously improve our business internally and externally.

Overview 

“To achieve our vision we
require commitment, good
practice and shared values”
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Overview  

AGENCY SNAPSHOT

In 2009 Challenger Institute of Technology experienced

significant service delivery growth for the third consecutive

year, increasing the number of hours of publicly funded

training services by 10.6 per cent on 2008, enrolling more than

23,000 students and increasing the revenue from commercially

delivered training by 25 per cent. The Institute engaged in a

number of public-private training partnerships, particularly

with the resources sector.

The Institute achieved an increase of 62 per cent in students

obtaining recognition of prior learning, making Challenger the

second largest provider of skills recognition in the state.

Against the state and national priorities for increasing the

number of students undertaking higher level qualifications at

diploma and advanced diploma levels, Challenger increased

delivery in this area by 28 per cent, with 2,050 students

enrolled at these levels in 2009. 

Five hundred and fifteen Aboriginal students were enrolled in

2009, with 163 studying a certificate three or higher level

qualification. There was a 94 per cent increase in school-based

participation levels among Aboriginal students.

Challenger increased its international service delivery and

reputation through the provision of off-shore commercial

training and workforce development services to organisations

in eight countries: Mauritius, Qatar, Abu Dhabi, India, China,

Singapore, Sri Lanka and Indonesia. The number of on-shore

international students attending Challenger also increased by

18 per cent on 2008, with the Institute now having well over

1,000 international learners.

An overwhelming number of Challenger students surveyed for

the Australian Quality Training Framework Learner Survey

indicated their training promoted high quality skills outcomes,

with 93 per cent agreeing their training focused on industry

skills and more than 90 per cent confirming their training was

flexible enough to meet their needs. Ninety per cent and 91 per

cent respectively said they were satisfied with their training and

would recommend Challenger Institute to others.

Challenger employed 800 staff and grew the capability

of its workforce by providing more than 8,600 hours of

internal and  external professional development, an

increase of nine per cent on 2008. More than four per

cent of the expenditure of the salaries budget was

directed towards building a culture of learning and

innovation within the organisation.

Against the Section 40 estimates, Challenger achieved

116 per cent of its delivery performance agreement

target and 128 per cent of its estimate for revenue from

other activities.
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIR AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

We are pleased to report on Challenger Institute of Technology’s performance for 2009.

The past year has seen the vocational education and training landscape change dramatically across Australia. Building a higher skilled
workforce is both a national and state priority, and Challenger responded in 2009 with the direct involvement of industry and
enterprise in planning and program development.  

The year was marked at a state level by the formation of a new West Australian training department and the launch of a State
Government training blueprint for the future – Training WA. Integral to this was the call for public training organisations to become
more autonomous, with the government giving TAFE colleges greater scope for flexibility and innovation in an increasingly
competitive training market. 

This year Challenger positioned itself well to move forward into the new era of training in WA with the launch of a refreshed corporate
identity – an identity that will bring an even greater focus on industry-responsive training and collaborative education pathways.

Challenger adapted well to the demands of the 2009 economic environment and aligned with the State Government’s training reform
initiatives to develop a skilled workforce. This was evidenced by the Institute’s 62 per cent increase in the number of students
obtaining Recognition of Prior Learning. 

We collaborated closely with more than 300 industry and community partners to ensure our training was responsive to local, regional,
national and global labour force requirements, and through the Institute’s Governing Council and 23 industry advisory boards we
continued to seek strategic industry advice. 

In 2009, driven by a tighter job market, Challenger experienced a greater demand for training places, with our student numbers
increasing to more than 23,000 and the Institute experiencing a 10 per cent growth in publicly-funded training delivery and a 25 per
cent increase in revenue from commercially-funded training. 

This growth was particularly strong in the service industries where employment outcomes remained strong, notably hospitality and
human services, which experienced a 27 per cent increase in publicly funded training delivery. A 16 per cent increase in the delivery of
horticulture and environmental science programs reflected the increasing value of sustainability skills to industry and the community.

In collaboration with industry and the Institute’s Governing Council, Challenger reviewed its strategic plan to establish priorities for
the Institute for the next three years. The plan sets out the Institute’s strategic outcomes, including: ensuring at least 65 per cent of
all programs are industry-based to meet workforce needs; building a strong and enterprising workforce; and maintaining our gold
status as an outstanding training organisation when measured against the Australian Quality Training Framework excellence criteria. 

There were considerable highlights this year and we invite readers to view our key achievements in the following pages. Among the
highlights was Australian Centre for Energy and Process Training graduate Adam Selby’s rise to become runner-up Trainee of the Year
at the Australian Training Awards after winning the WA Trainee of the Year award. Also, Challenger’s WA Maritime Training Centre
achieved the top tourism training award at the WA Tourism Awards for the third consecutive year.

The year ahead will see a recovery of the West Australian economy, with skills gap implications resulting from the state’s resource and
construction projects. Challenger will continue to build on the existing strong industry partnerships and relationships it has in place
and will work cooperatively and collaboratively with industry, community and government to implement workforce development
initiatives to meet the needs of the growing economy. We will continue to focus on providing a demand-driven, customer focused and
flexible training enterprise. This approach has already resulted in Challenger’s consecutive years of significant service delivery growth.

Appreciation is extended to Challenger’s Governing Council for its contribution during 2009 and to the members of the Institute’s
industry advisory boards and subcommittees. 

Our thanks also go to Peter Collier MLC, Minister for Training and Workforce Development, for his continued enthusiasm for the
sector and his support for Challenger Institute of Technology throughout 2009.

Paddi Creevey Liz Harris
Chair Managing Director
Challenger Institute of Technology Challenger Institute of Technology

Overview  
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KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

ACEPT Student Shines

Australian Centre for Energy and Process Training (ACEPT) process plant operations student Adam Selby was announced runner up
Trainee of the Year at the 2009 Australian Training Awards in Canberra. Adam was also named 2009 Trainee of the Year at the WA
Training Awards after taking out the dual titles of Challenger’s 2008 Student of the Year and Trainee of the Year. 

Floristry at WorldSkills

Former floristry student Stacey Pitman was awarded a medallion of excellence at the 40th International WorldSkills Competition.
Stacey, a member of the Australian Skillaroos team, represented the best of her peers from regional and national skills competitions.
She was one of more than 1,000 of the world’s top young professionals in trades, service and technical programs who showcased
their talents in Canada.

Maritime Enters Tourism Hall of Fame 

The WA Maritime Training Centre was inducted into the WA Tourism Hall of Fame after winning top honours for the third consecutive
year at the WA Tourism Awards. Challenger was recognised for the creative, sustainable and professional delivery of its unique marine
tourism program. The accolade confirmed the centre’s well-established reputation as a centre of excellence in maritime training.

Fisheries Minister Visits Aquaculture 

WA Fisheries Minister Norman Moore visited the Aquaculture Development Unit to see first-hand the restocking activities that have
made the unit a national leader. Mr Moore welcomed the opportunity to learn more about the ADU’s research and technology
projects. The ADU is at the forefront of growing fish species appropriate for restocking and is renowned for its success in restocking
black bream in the Blackwood River.

International Aquaculture Partnerships

The Aquaculture Development Unit developed collaborative projects with a number of organisations in 2009, including international
agencies such as: Wageningen IMARES University in Holland and New Zealand Hatchery and New Zealand Fish Farm for yellowtail
kingfish culture; Gondol Research Institute for Mariculture, Indonesia; University of Miami, USA, for yellowfin tuna culture; Tokyo
University of Marine Science, Japan, for marine fish surrogacy research; as well as Fish Pac for the international transport of live fish
and Aldwich Holdings for the supply of commercial quantities of juvenile silver perch. 

Cooking Collaboration with Local Schools

Challenger opened its commercial training kitchen in Beaconsfield to local primary schools involved in the Australia-wide Stephanie
Alexander Kitchen Garden Project that encourages schools to teach children about growing, harvesting and eating fresh food.
Challenger offered to help the schools take the kitchen garden project a step further by giving students the opportunity to turn their
school-grown produce into tasty meals under the supervision of apprentice chefs.

Emirates Contract Extended

Managing director Liz Harris extended the existing training contract with the Vocational Education Development Centre in Dubai for a
further three years. Challenger’s partnership with the VEDC is having a significant impact on industry in the United Arab Emirates by
equipping citizens with technical skills that would otherwise be imported via foreign workers. A lecturer from Challenger visits the
VEDC annually to ensure training delivery is consistent with Australian standards.

MD Named Top Business Woman

Managing director Liz Harris won the Telstra WA Business Women Award (White Pages Community and Government). Ms Harris was
selected from a field of six outstanding finalists in the community and government category and was one of 21 West Australian
business women named finalists in five award categories. In its 15th year in 2009, the Telstra Business Women Awards recognise the
achievements of women in business of all types and sizes. 

Overview 
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MAJOR INITIATIVES AND PROJECTS

TAFE Response Unit

Challenger launched a rapid response unit to provide immediate training and career advice for employees and industries affected by
workplace redundancies. The TAFE Response Unit is a central point of contact where employers and workers can receive direct
assistance via a free 1800 helpline. TRU was established in response to the global financial crisis and is a coordinated effort by all
TAFE colleges. 

Australia-First Nursing Partnership

Challenger and St John of God Hospital Murdoch successfully completed a 12-month pilot program for a Diploma of Enrolled
Nursing. The Australia-first training course, which has been endorsed by the Nurses and Midwives Board of WA, immerses students
in fast-tracked learning in a wholly hospital setting.

New Challenger Brand

Challenger welcomed the beginning of a new era of training in Western Australia with the unveiling of its new corporate identity. WA’s
most diverse training provider was renamed Challenger Institute of Technology in response to the State Government’s move to
provide colleges with greater autonomy, giving them the opportunity to become more flexible, innovative and effective in a
competitive training market. 

Diploma-Degree Pathway

A regional campuses project was established with Murdoch
University for four new jointly developed and delivered applied
degree qualifications. The partnership, which will allow Challenger
students completing selected diplomas to transfer straight into the
second year of a related degree at Murdoch, was launched by Peter
Collier, Minister for Training and Workforce Development. 

BHP Contract

Challenger signed a $4.2 million partnership with BHP Nickel West
to provide training services to more than 1,020 employees in
process operations and engineering maintenance.

Regional Collaboration Extended

Partnerships were developed with local governments and industry in
regional development projects, such as the South West Corridor
Workforce Development Plan. Collaboration with the City of
Cockburn saw 30 employees graduate from Challenger with
management qualifications under a new partnership to deliver
workplace training and assessment.

Boosting Local Employment 

In partnership with the Peel Development Commission, Challenger continued its role in the Pinjarra Brunswick Sustainability Strategy
– Local Jobs for Local People.

Challenger Makes an Impact

Challenger’s innovative model for providing enhanced benefits in workplace-based training was showcased at the Big Skills
Conference in Sydney. The Challenger Impact Model is a series of case studies of partnerships between Challenger and a variety of
organisations and was prepared in conjunction with noted vocational education and training strategist Dr John Mitchell. 

Overview 

Training and Workforce Development Minister Peter Collier and
Liz Harris with Murdoch University vice chancellor John Yovich at the
co-launch of Challenger’s new brand and higher education partnership.
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OUTLOOK FOR THE FUTURE

During 2009 Challenger Institute of Technology undertook a review of its strategic directions. Our strategic objectives are framed
within the six key Training WA strategies for the state and focus on:

1. A skilled workforce providing industry-driven training to meet workforce development needs.

2. Flexible and contemporary apprenticeship and traineeship delivery.

3. Individual participation in training, expanding the community’s access to relevant vocational education and training.

4. Support for regional communities in accessing training.

5. A strong enterprising culture generating commercial and international business.

6. A capable and flexible training organisation.

Progress towards the achievement of our 2010 strategies will be monitored by the 2010 key programs and key deliverables.

Challenger is committed to a culture of organisational learning and development and to being a learning organisation itself. This
ongoing improvement will be built upon the skills, knowledge, abilities and attitudes of our staff, and the teamwork and relationships
that are established across the organisation.

We will focus on the continued improvement of our internal systems and business processes, as well as the services and programs
we deliver.  We will strive to build on our external relationships and demonstrate effective leadership within the community and the
regions we service.

Overview 

“A capable and flexible
training organisation”
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OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE

Agency Profile

Challenger Institute of Technology is a statutory authority
delivering vocational education and training. 

Established in 1996 under Section 35 of the Vocational
Education and Training Act 1996, the Institute is a body
corporate with functions conferred by the Minister for
Training and Workforce Development and consists of a
Governing Council, staff and enrolled students. 

Public training institutions are the primary providers of
publicly-funded vocational education and training in Western
Australia offering:

• Nationally-recognised qualifications.

• Apprenticeship and traineeship training.

• Entry and bridging courses leading into mainstream
courses. 

• Commercial training – customised training and short courses. 

• Lifestyle and leisure courses.

Funding for delivery of this training is negotiated with the Department of Training and Workforce Development each calendar year.

There are 17 Challenger training locations in the Perth south-west metropolitan and Peel regions, in an area of 6,220 square
kilometres.

Challenger has a strong consultative culture hosting 23 industry advisory boards and sub-committees that provide advice on industry
directions and requirements. 

The Institute also has more than 300 partnering arrangements with individual community groups and agencies including 75 local
schools, which enrolled 2,740 students at the Institute in 2009 under the VET for Schools program.

Challenger’s focus on industry and the community is supported and strengthened through its Industry Training Centre model of
training delivery. There are 14 centres specialising in a spread of industries that include maritime, applied engineering and
shipbuilding, energy and process training, automotive and construction, horticulture, environmental science and wool technology, as
well as a broad range of lifestyle and leisure programs and re-entry to learning programs.

Overview  
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Enabling Legislation 

Challenger Institute of Technology was established as a Statutory Authority in 1996 under section 35 of the Vocational Education and
Training Act 1996.

Responsible Minister

The Hon Peter Collier, BA, DipEd MLC, Minister for Energy, Training and Workforce Development.

Organisational Chart

The Accountable Authority for Challenger Institute of Technology is the Governing Council. The managing director is the chief
executive officer and is supported by an executive comprising the general managers of the organisation’s four directorates. The
largest of the directorates is Training Services, the Institute’s training delivery arm. Business Services and Client Services and
Communications provide corporate and client support, with Organisational Learning and Development responsible for learning
services and quality and continuous improvement functions.

Overview  



CHALLENGER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY ANNUAL REPORT 2009 | 11

Executive Team

Governing Council

Each member of the Governing Council is appointed by the Minister for Training and Workforce Development to serve for a period of
up to three years and is eligible for re-appointment. Members are appointed for their experience and expertise in education and
training or industry and community affairs, and for their ability to contribute to the strategic direction of the Institute.

Paddi Creevey (Chair)
Appointed 2002

Ms Creevey is the Mayor of Mandurah and has an extensive background in social and community health
work. She is a member of the Peel Region Planning Committee, a local government representative on the Peel
Development Commission Board and Regional Development Australia Peel, and chairs the Women in Local
Government ministerial advisory committee. She is a member of the Federal Government’s Climate Change
and the Coast reference group and serves on an advisory group on higher education in regional Australia.

Mike Deeks (Deputy Chairman)
Appointed 2006

Commodore Deeks served for 32 years in the Royal Australian Navy, retiring in 2005. He is vice patron of the
Australian American Association of WA, a councillor of the Royal United Services Institute of WA, a governor
of the Leeuwin Ocean Adventures Foundation, former president and current board member of the Submarine
Institute of Australia and member of the State Training Board. Cdre Deeks is presently WA site executive for
Raytheon Australia, a technology and engineering company. 

Selma Alliex
Appointed 2008

Professor Alliex is dean of the University of Notre Dame’s School of Nursing. Prof Alliex’s area of expertise is
nursing education and qualitative research. She has worked in all areas of nursing and has current nursing
experience as a community health nurse. Prior to teaching at the University of Notre Dame in Fremantle, Prof
Alliex was the professional standards nursing adviser for the Nurses Board of Western Australia. Prof Alliex
has nursing education experience both in Australia and overseas. 

Overview  

Centre: Liz Harris, managing director

From left to right: Jill Jamieson, general manager Training Services

Melanie Sorensen, general manager Organisational Learning and Development

Terry Durant, general manager Client Services and Communications

Michael Juliff, general manager Business Services
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Kaye Butler
Appointed 2007

Ms Butler is human resources manager for the Australasian Strategic Business Unit of Chevron Australia. Ms
Butler has worked in the resources industry for most of the past 18 years and has a strong background in
organisational psychology and human resource management. She has been involved in projects on people
development and organisational improvement across a number of countries, covering a broad range of
issues. Ms Butler holds board positions with Palmerston Association and the Curriculum Council of WA.

Stephen Cain 
Appointed 2006

Mr Cain is chief executive officer of the City of Cockburn. During the past 20 years he has held senior
management positions in the private and government sectors. He served for 11 years as an officer in the
Australian Regular Army and is a graduate of the Royal Military College, Duntroon. He continues to serve in
the Reserve Forces and holds the rank of colonel. Mr Cain is a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Transport
and Logistics and Governor of the Corps of Commissionaires.

Angus Callander
Appointed 2002 and 2008

Mr Callander was chairman of Central West College of TAFE between 1995 and 1997 and chaired the college’s
Maritime Industry Board for seven years. Mr Callander is currently working as a consultant to the fishing and
seafood industry in which he has more than 25 years of experience, including as chief executive officer of
Vinci Seafoods and general manager for MG Kailis. He is a director of the Western Australian Fishing
Industry Council and Seafood Experience Australia.

Helen Cattalini
Appointed 2003

Ms Cattalini is a former Commissioner of Multicultural and Ethnic Affairs with the Western Australian
Government. She was awarded an Order of Australia Medal in 1998 for services to the community. Since
1987, she has been a director of Helen Cattalini Consultancy Services, which specialises in social research and
policy and program development in the government, local government and community sectors.

Tony Evans
Appointed 2009

Mr Evans is general manager and secretary of the WA Planning Commission. He has extensive financial and
commercial management and board experience in the oil and gas, mining and mineral processing,
government, university and not-for-profit sectors. Mr Evans has held management positions with Perth
Diocesan Trustees, WA Petroleum, Chevron Corporation, Murdoch University and Iluka Resources. He is
deputy chairman of the Joint Accreditation System of Australia and New Zealand and the Council of
Chartered Institute of Company Secretaries Australia. 

Liz Harris
Appointed 2007

Ms Harris was appointed managing director of Challenger Institute of Technology in 2007. Ms Harris has
acquired diverse experience during her 20-year career in vocational education and training and higher
education, working in VET internationally, including in Fiji, Sri Lanka and Japan, and lecturing and
researching in organisational learning and development at Murdoch University. She worked as a national
director with the former Australian National Training Authority and at executive level within the TAFE system
prior to being appointed managing director of Challenger. 

Overview  
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David Holland
Appointed 2003

Mr Holland is principal strategist and director of Brighthouse urban designers and tourism development
consultants. He is a specialist in environmentally sustainable accommodation developments for the tourism,
resource and retirement sectors. He has considerable experience in tourism operations and has served as
chairman of the Peel Region Tourism Association, president of the Caravan Industry Australia (WA), and as a
member of the WA Hospitality and Tourism Industry Training Council. Mr Holland is chairman of judges for
the WA Tourism Awards. 

Rod Ogilvie
Appointed 2006

Mr Ogilvie is a Yamatji man from Naanda Country in Western Australia. He has extensive knowledge of and
expertise on social issues and a strong commitment to social justice. Mr Ogilvie has held several government
and non-government management positions in WA and NSW. Since 2007 he has been manager of
Indigenous employment with Macmahon Holdings. Mr Ogilvie has worked for SMYL Community Services on
projects in the Perth metropolitan area and Kimberley region of Western Australia.

Kevin Woods
Appointed 2009

Mr Woods is the managing director of Woods Matson, a consultancy that specialises in business
development. He has extensive senior management experience in secondary and tertiary education
institutions, including as chief executive officer for Excel Education and Alexander Education Group and pro-
vice chancellor resources at Murdoch University. He has served on the governing boards of several corporate
and public sector organisations, including Murdoch Institute, MS Biotechnology and Uni Super.

Administered Legislation

The Minister for Training and Workforce Development administers the Vocational Education and Training Act 1996 (the Act).

Other Key Legislation Impacting on Activities

Other key legislation impacting on Challenger Institute of Technology’s activities and with which the Institute complies are the
following:

Auditor General Act 2006
Disability Services Act 1993
Corruption and Crime Commission Act 2003
Education Service Providers (Full Fee Overseas Students) Registration Act 1991
Equal Opportunity Act 1984
Financial Management Act 2006
Freedom of Information Act 1992
Industrial Relations Act 1979
Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984
Public Sector Management Act 1994
Salaries and Allowances Act 1975
School Education Act 1999
State Records Act 2000 
State Supply Commission Act 1991
Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981
Working with Children (Criminal Record Checking) Act 2004

Overview  
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PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Outcome Based Management Framework

Government goals are supported at agency level by specific desired outcomes. Agencies deliver services to achieve these outcomes,
which ultimately contribute to meeting the higher level government goals.

The following illustrates the relationship between Challenger’s outcomes and the most appropriate government goals. It includes the
major goals set out in the 10-year Training WA plan released by the Minister for Training and Workforce Development in 2009.
Training WA incorporates public and private registered training organisations. 

Changes to Outcome Based Management Framework

The only change to Challenger’s Outcome Based Management Framework in 2009 was the insertion of the West Australian VET
sector goals set out in Training WA.

Shared Responsibilities with Other Agencies

Challenger receives its annual funding allocation from the State Government through a resource agreement (Delivery and
Performance Agreement) with the Department of Training and Workforce Development. The Institute reports to the department for
outcomes under that agreement.

Overview  

Government Goal Training WA Goals 
(Training Sector)

Desired Outcomes
Challenger (Agency Level)

Services

Outcomes Based Service
Delivery
Greater focus on achieving
results in key service delivery
areas for the benefit of all West
Australians

• An increase of 17,500
working aged West
Australians undertaking
accredited training by 2012

• An increase in the
proportion of workplace
and/or flexible training
from 27% to 40% by 2012

Provision of education and
training services to meet the
community and industry
training needs

1 Training programs for
nationally recognised
qualifications

2 Apprenticeship and
traineeship training

3 Entry and bridging courses
leading into mainstream
courses

4 Commercial training –
customised training and
short courses
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REPORT ON OPERATIONS

Providing Industry-Driven Training and Related Services to Meet Workforce Needs

Students

A strong demand for Challenger Institute of Technology training products and services resulted in a 4.5 per cent increase in total
student numbers, from 22,122 in 2008 to 23,110 in 2009. The increase represented:

• Growth in training in the competitive and open training market, with 901 additional students enrolled in non-profile programs – a
9.4% increase on 2008.

• An overall increase of 10.8% or 618,987 Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) in the quantity of training delivered.

FIGURE 1 – Total Student Numbers 2007-2009

In 2009, Challenger administered the inaugural Australian Quality Training Framework Learner Survey that assessed the extent to
which students were engaging in activities likely to promote high-quality skills outcomes. Participation in the survey program was a
requirement for all registered training organisations under the AQTF. A total of 759 Challenger students across a wide range of
industry areas and demographic groups completed the survey between October and December.

Highlights:

• 93% of students agreed their training focused on relevant skills.

• 91% agreed the training was flexible enough to meet their needs.

• 90% agreed that overall they are satisfied with their training.

• 91% agreed they would recommend Challenger to others.

Workforce Development

Since 2007 Challenger has successfully implemented a range of change management and organisational development strategies to
build the Institute’s capability to deliver sophisticated workforce development services.

Consistent with state and national policies aimed at developing a modern, highly skilled and flexible workforce, Challenger has
focused on strategies to better meet workforce needs including:

• Improving and growing Recognition of Prior Learning services.

• Increasing training for higher level qualifications and pathways into higher education.

• Increasing the amount of training delivered in the workplace.

Agency Performance
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Recognition of Prior Learning

In 2009, Challenger recorded a 62 per cent increase in the number of students who obtained RPL, with 1,071 individuals obtaining
skills recognition in 2009 compared to 660 in 2008.

Figure 2 – Students Obtaining RPL 2007-2009

Highlights:

• Delivery of construction and transport RPL increased by 58,000 SCH.

• 91% of students completing the 2009 AQTF Learner Survey agreed Challenger gave appropriate recognition of existing knowledge
and skills.

Higher Level Qualifications

Increasing the proportion of workers with higher level qualifications is a state and national VET priority. Challenger is expanding the
range and depth of qualifications it offers to meet these requirements. In 2009, diploma and advanced diploma enrolments increased
by 26.2 per cent, from 1,977 in 2008 to 2,495 in 2009.

Figure 3: Diploma & Advanced Diploma Course Enrolments 2007-2009

Highlights:

• Regional campuses project established with Murdoch University for four new jointly developed and delivered applied degree
qualifications. The partnership will allow Challenger students completing selected diplomas to transfer straight into the second
year of a related degree at Murdoch.

• Training implemented for 250 worker traineeships in laboratory training, from Certificate IV to advanced diploma.

• Twelve month pilot program for Diploma of Enrolled Nursing completed in partnership with St John of God Hospital Murdoch and
endorsed by the Nurses and Midwives Board of WA.

Agency Performance
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Apprenticeships and Traineeships

Despite a tight economic environment, Challenger experienced a smaller than expected decline in overall apprenticeships and
traineeships. In 2009, training was provided to 3,433 apprentices and trainees compared to 3,609 in 2008, a decrease of 4.8 per cent.

Figure 4: Apprenticeships & Traineeships 2005-2009

In 2009, the state and federal governments continued to target traditional trades to address skills shortage issues in industries
critical to economic development. Despite the downturn, Challenger performed strongly in these areas.

Highlights:

• Apprenticeship and traineeship targets exceeded in building and construction and electrical trades.

• Apprenticeship and traineeship targets achieved in automotive.

• Apprentice numbers in defence and resource industries, including manufacturing, metals and engineering, were maintained.

Other Skills in Demand

In 2009, there was strong demand for training in the skills shortage areas of education, childcare, health and process manufacturing,
with additional places provided through the Federal Government’s Productivity Places Program. An increase in horticulture and
environmental sciences training reflected the community and industry’s growing demand for sustainability skills.

Highlights:

• 27% increase in hospitality and human services publicly funded training, including health and community services and nursing.

• 16% increase in horticulture and environmental sciences publicly funded training.

• 65% increase in commercial revenue from primary industries and sustainable development, to $1.1 million.

• New Diploma of Sustainability implemented.

• Two Certificate III health services courses delivered at St John of God Hospital Murdoch.

Agency Performance
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Workplace Training Services

In line with the State Government’s Training WA goals, Challenger Institute places a high priority on boosting workplace training and
achieved 28 per cent growth in training hours (SCH) in this area between 2007 and 2009. More than two million training hours were
delivered in the workplace in 2009, representing nearly one third of all training provided by Challenger.

Figure 5: Training Delivered in Workplace 2007-2009

Challenger maintained and established new contracts with large enterprises to provide extensive workforce development strategies.

Highlights:

• 30% increase in horticulture and environmental science workplace training.

• Partnership with BHP Nickel West to provide workplace training in process operations and engineering maintenance to more than
1,020 employees.

• Partnered with City of Cockburn to deliver workplace training and assessment for Diploma of Management and Certificate III in
Frontline Management to 30 employees.

• Partnered with Burswood Entertainment Complex to deliver on-site commercial cookery training.

Expanding the Community’s Access to Relevant Vocational Education and Training and Appropriate Support Services

Students with Special Needs1

In 2009, Challenger provided specialised access and participation programs and strategies to support disadvantaged clients to
achieve training and employment outcomes.

Challenger’s Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander (ATSI) programs and access and participation areas provided innovative training
and employment programs to boost student retention, completion and progression into higher levels of study and employment. A
major focus was the provision of customised bridging courses to meet the needs of target groups such as youth at risk, people with
disabilities, women returning to the workforce, adults with literacy and numeracy needs, and people needing to learn English as a
second language.
1 Due to a change in collection methodology in 2009, comparable data for special needs groups are not available for previous years.

Figure 6: Students With Special Needs 2009

Agency Performance
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Highlights:

• 178 Aboriginal students enrolled in Certificate III and higher qualifications.

• 15 Aboriginal students who completed Workabout Certificate I in Wider Opportunities for Work obtained apprenticeships with
Department of Treasury and Finance.

• 60% increase in assistance provided by student support advisers to students with disabilities.

• 1,200 mainstream students across 35 courses received literacy and numeracy support through Certificate in Applied Vocational
Study Skills.

• 93% of students completing the 2009 AQTF Learner Survey agreed Challenger staff respected their background and needs.

Young People

In 2009, 7,094 or 30.7 per cent of Challenger’s student population was aged 19 years or younger. 

Figure 7: Student Population, Age and Gender 2009

In 2009, demand for the VET in Schools program increased due to the economic downturn which resulted in less young people
leaving school for employment. However, new government policy to provide higher level qualifications under the VET in Schools
program saw the program become more resource intensive and as a result fewer student places were offered. 

Highlights:

• More than 400 presentations to schools and community groups on career opportunities for young people and 25,210 career advice
appointments.

• 80 students with disabilities helped to complete their vocational studies under expansion of the Get Smart program supporting
minors.

• 44 students helped to re-enter training, education and employment under the Youth Access Re-engagement Program for severely
disengaged young people.

Regional

In 2009, there was a 14 per cent increase on 2008 in student contact hours in the Peel region but a decrease in enrolments, which
reflects the move towards more resource intensive training for higher qualification levels.

Challenger collaborated with local governments and industry on a number of regional development projects, including the South
West Corridor Workforce Development Plan. 

The Institute continued its collaborating role in the Pinjarra Brunswick Sustainability Strategy – Local Jobs for Local People, which
helps people and businesses access contracts, jobs and training. It also built on its work with Murdoch University to improve and
expand articulation arrangements between the VET and university sectors.

Agency Performance
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Figure 8: Training Delivery Peel Region 2007

In 2009, 18 per cent of Challenger students lived in regional locations, including 12 per cent in the Peel region.

Figure 9: 2009 Student Population by Location

Highlights:

• Regional campuses project established with Murdoch University for four new jointly developed and delivered applied degree
qualifications. The partnership will allow Challenger students completing selected diplomas to transfer straight into the second
year of a related degree at Murdoch.

• Planning began for a new building and construction training centre in Rockingham, scheduled for completion in 2012-2013.

Agency Performance
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ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL TRENDS

Challenger Institute of Technology is influenced by local, state and national economic and social trends. 

In 2009 there was a downturn in Western Australia’s economy resulting from the global financial crisis. However, the West Australian
economy is anticipated to grow in both 2011-12 and 2012-13, slightly below the 10 year average growth rate of 4.4 per cent. The South
West Corridor - the major region serviced by Challenger - recorded an unemployment rate of 7.2 per cent at the beginning of 2009, a
sharp rise from 2.9 per cent in December 2008. A recovering state economy and significant infrastructure projects planned for the
region are expected to stimulate economic growth and see a continued demand for training.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND FORECAST RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

With major offshore oil and gas projects underway in Western Australia, a high priority for Challenger will be to continue working with
its resource industry partners to deliver skills and workforce development strategies.

The Institute will continue to meet obligations arising from the 2009 economic contraction, including providing services to
enterprises and advice to workers about training opportunities and new careers. The Institute will also cater for unemployed people
who have free access to training places through the State Government’s Training WA initiatives.

With greater contestability in the West Australian training market, Challenger will adapt to a more competitive public funding
environment and expand its presence in international and fee-for-service markets.

CHANGES IN WRITTEN LAW

In 2009 amendments to the Vocational Education and Training Act 1996 came into effect. Changes that impact on Challenger include
capacity for the Institute to issue apprenticeship Class A qualifications through skills recognition for people who are not employed
under a training contract; and more comprehensive strategic and business plans providing scope for the Institute to operate more
flexibly and independently.

Significant Issues Impacting the Agency
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CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHALLENGER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY

The accompanying financial statements of Challenger Institute of Technology have been prepared in compliance with the provisions
of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions for the year
ending 31 December 2009 and the financial position as at 31 December 2009.

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars included in the financial statements
misleading or inaccurate.

9 March 2010

Chair of the Governing Council Dated

9 March 2010

Managing Director (member of Governing Council) Dated

5 March 2010

Chief Financial Officer Dated

Financial Statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT OPINION 

To the Parliament of Western Australia 

CHALLENGER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 

I have audited the accounts, financial statements, controls and key performance indicators of the Challenger Institute of Technology. 

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2009, and the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory Notes. 

The key performance indicators consist of key indicators of effectiveness and efficiency. 

Governing Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements and Key Performance Indicators 
The Governing Council is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and the key performance indicators.
This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements and key performance indicators that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances; and
complying with the Financial Management Act 2006 and other relevant written law. 

Summary of my Role 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements, controls and key
performance indicators based on my audit. This was done by testing selected samples of the audit evidence. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. Further information on my audit
approach is provided in my audit practice statement. This document is available on the OAG website under “How We Audit”. 

An audit does not guarantee that every amount and disclosure in the financial statements and key performance indicators is error
free. The term “reasonable assurance” recognises that an audit does not examine all evidence and every transaction. However, my
audit procedures should identify errors or omissions significant enough to adversely affect the decisions of users of the financial
statements and key performance indicators. 

Audit Opinion 
In my opinion, 

(i) the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly the financial position of the Challenger Institute of
Technology as at 31 December 2009 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date. They are in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions; 

(ii) the controls exercised by the Institute provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money,
the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with legislative provisions;
and 

(iii) the key performance indicators of the Institute are relevant and appropriate to help users assess the Institute’s performance
and fairly represent the indicated performance for the year ended 31 December 2009. 

COLIN MURPHY 
AUDITOR GENERAL 
11 March 2010
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Financial Statements

Challenger Institute of Technology

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 2009 2008

Notes $ $ 

COST OF SERVICES

Expenses

Employee benefits expense 6 52,974,015 50,105,744 

Supplies and services 7 16,782,313 20,191,649 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 8 5,425,428 4,810,260 

Grants and subsidies 9 49,143 86,347 

Cost of sales 14 627,870 646,329 

Loss on disposal of non-current assets 18 34,395 5,000 

Other expenses 10 5,021,246 5,301,095 

Total cost of services 80,914,410 81,146,424 

Income

Revenue

Fee for service 11 11,851,379 9,089,276 

Student fees and charges 12 8,327,708 7,262,448 

Ancillary trading 13 1,170,154 1,251,970 

Sales 14 777,862 828,427 

Commonwealth grants and contributions 15 1,912,536 15,046 

Interest revenue 16 214,944 466,564 

Other revenue 17 1,476,036 2,438,675 

Total revenue 25,730,619 21,352,406 

Total income other than income from State Government 25,730,619 21,352,406 

NET COST OF SERVICES (55,183,791) (59,794,018)

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT 19

Service Appropriation 55,925,807 49,970,934 

Resources received free of charge 1,119,954 1,331,326 

Total income from State Government 57,045,761 51,302,260 

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD 1,861,970 (8,491,758)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Changes in asset revaluation surplus (12,610,931) 18,504,031 

Total other comprehensive income (12,610,931) 18,504,031 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (10,748,961) 10,012,273 

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Financial Statements

Challenger Institute of Technology

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2009 2009 2008 

Notes $ $ 

ASSETS

Current Assets  

Cash and cash equivalents 32 7,585,043 1,946,788 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 20,32 3,120,241 1,957,632 

Inventories 21 313,586 209,344 

Receivables 22 2,381,448 2,143,038 

Other current assets 23 523,498 377,446 

Total Current Assets 13,923,816 6,634,248 

Non-Current Assets 

Property, plant and equipment 24 191,982,633 209,373,352 

Total Non-Current Assets 191,982,633 209,373,352 

TOTAL ASSETS 205,906,449 216,007,600 

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Payables 27 2,281,888 3,164,623 

Provisions 28 7,868,462 7,226,591 

Other current liabilities 29 447,758 595,664 

Total Current Liabilities 10,598,108 10,986,878 

Non-Current Liabilities

Provisions 28 3,513,066 2,476,486 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 3,513,066 2,476,486 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,111,174 13,463,364 

NET ASSETS 191,795,275 202,544,236 

EQUITY

Contributed equity 31 42,592,471 42,592,471 

Reserves 109,629,047 122,239,978 

Accumulated surplus 39,573,757 37,711,787 

TOTAL  EQUITY 191,795,275 202,544,236 

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Financial Statements

Challenger Institute of Technology

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

Contributed
Equity Reserves

Accumulated
Surplus (Deficit)

Total Equity

Notes

Balance at 1 January 2008 31 26,180,393 103,735,947 46,203,545 176,119,885 

Total comprehensive income for the year -   18,504,031 (8,491,758) 10,012,273 

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners

Capital contribution 16,412,078 -   -   16,412,078 

Balance at 31 December 2008 42,592,471 122,239,978 37,711,787 202,544,236 

Total comprehensive income for the year -   (12,610,931) 1,861,970 (10,748,961)

Balance at 31 December 2009 42,592,471 109,629,047 39,573,757 191,795,275 

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Financial Statements

Challenger Institute of Technology

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 2009 2008 

Notes $ $ 

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

Service Appropriation – Department of Education 51,764,719 46,026,647 

Net cash provided by State Government 51,764,719 46,026,647 

Utilised as follows:

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Payments

Employee benefits (46,764,204) (44,767,366)

Supplies and services (17,013,745) (17,640,383)

Grants and subsidies (49,143) (86,347)

GST payments on purchases (1,766,561) (2,137,635)

GST payments to taxation authority (627,574) (795,903)

Other payments (5,719,920) (5,407,798)

Receipts

Fee for service 11,780,667 8,927,395 

Student fees and charges  7,938,118 7,097,586 

Ancillary trading 1,170,154 1,251,970 

Commonwealth grants and contributions 1,912,536 15,046 

Interest received 218,897 466,564 

GST receipts on sales 625,499 762,025 

GST receipts from taxation authority 1,774,797 2,114,063 

Other receipts 2,260,383 3,267,102 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 32 (44,260,096) (46,933,681)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets 131,633 216,001 

Purchase of non-current physical assets (835,392) (1,891,842)

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (703,759) (1,675,841)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6,800,864 (2,582,874)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 3,904,420 6,487,294 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD 32 10,705,284 3,904,420 

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

1 Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards

(a) General
The Institute’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
which include a Framework for  the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (the Framework) and the Australian Interpretations. The
term Australian Accounting Standards’ refers to Standards and Interpretations made by the AASB that apply to any reporting period beginning on
or after 1 January 2005.

In preparing these financial statements the Institute has adopted, where relevant to its operations, new and revised Australian Accounting
Standards from their operative dates as issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).

(b) Early adoption of standards
The Institute cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by Treasurer’s Instruction (TI) 1101 ‘Application of
Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements’. No Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued or amended but are not
yet effective have been early adopted by the Institute for the annual reporting period ended 31 December 2009.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, these policies are
consistent with those adopted in the previous year.

(a)  General statement
The financial statements constitute a general purpose financial statement which has been prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting
Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the TIs. Several
of these are modified by the TIs to vary application, disclosure, format and wording. 

The Financial Management Act and the TIs are legislative provisions governing the preparation of financial statements and take precedence over
the Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB.

Where modification is required and has a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of that modification and the
resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

(b)  Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention, modified by the revaluation of
land, buildings and infrastructure which have been measured at fair value.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied throughout all periods presented
unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest dollar ($).

The judgements that have been made in the process of applying the Institute’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements are disclosed at note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’.

The key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a
significant risk of causing a material  adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are disclosed at
note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’.

(c)  Reporting entity
The reporting entity comprises the Institute and entities listed at note 40 ‘Related bodies’.

(d)  Contributed equity
AASB Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’ requires transfers, other than as a result of a
restructure of administrative arrangements, in the nature of equity contributions to be designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions
by owners (at the time of, or prior to, transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions. Capital contributions
(appropriations) are designated as contributions by owners per TI 955 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities’ and
have been credited directly to Contributed Equity.

Transfer of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, are designated as
contributions by/distributions to owners to where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal. See note 31 ‘Equity’.

Repayable capital appropriations are recognised as liabilities. See Note 19 ‘Income from State Government’ for further commentary on the
application of TI 955.

Transfers of net assets to/from other agencies as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements are to be accounted for as distributions
to owners and contributions to owners respectively.  Refer to Note 31 ‘Equity”

(e)  Income
Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.

Financial Statements
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The majority of operating revenue of the Institute represents revenue earned  from student fees and charges, fee for service, ancillary services,
trading activities and Commonwealth grants and contributions.

Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and rewards of ownership control transfer to
the purchaser and can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services
Revenue is recognised on delivery of the service to the client or by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction.

Interest
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues. The effective interest method which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset, is used where applicable.

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Institute obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions, usually upon their receipt.

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services are only
recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not donated.

Where contributions recognised as revenues during the reporting period were obtained on the condition that they be expended in a particular
manner or used over a particular period, and those conditions were undischarged as at the end of the reporting period, the nature of, and amounts
pertaining to, those undischarged conditions are disclosed in the notes.

State funds
The funds received from the Department of Education in respect of the delivery of services forming part of the Delivery Performance Agreement are
included in State funds, disclosed under ‘Income from State Government’. They are the result of training successfully tendered for under
competitive tendering arrangements. This revenue is recognised at nominal value in the period in which the Institute meets the terms of the
Agreement. See note 19 ‘Income from State Government’.

Gains
Gains may be realised or unrealised and are usually recognised on a net basis. These include gains arising on the disposal of non-current assets
and some revaluations of non-current assets.

(f ) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs for qualifying assets are capitalised net of any investment income earned on the unexpended portion of the borrowings. A
qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are
expensed when incurred.

(g) Property, plant and equipment
Capitalisation/Expensing of assets
Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated)
over their useful lives. Items of property, plant and equipment costing less than $5,000 are recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total).

Initial recognition and measurement
All items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure are initially recognised at cost. For items of property, plant and equipment and
infrastructure acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Subsequent measurement 
After recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the measurement of land and  buildings and the cost model for all other property,
plant and equipment. Land and buildings are carried at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and accumulated impairment losses.
All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of current market buying values
determined by reference to recent market transactions. When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated
depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount. 

Where market-based evidence is not available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of existing use. This normally applies
where buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted. Fair value for existing use assets is determined by reference to the cost of replacing
the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is
dependent on using the depreciated replacement cost, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation are restated proportionately.

Independent valuations of land and buildings are provided annually by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Landgate) and recognised
with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the asset’s fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to assets and in
determining estimated useful life. Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction between
market type assets and existing use assets. Refer to note 24 ‘Property, plant and equipment’ for further information on revaluations.

Financial Statements
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Derecognition 
Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure, any revaluation reserve relating to that asset is
retained in the asset revaluation reserve.

Asset Revaluation Reserve
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets as described in note 24
Property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a manner which reflects the
consumption of their future economic benefits.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated on the straight line method over its useful life, using rates which are reviewed
annually.

Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are:

Buildings 40 to 94 years
Leasehold Improvements 2 to 10 years
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers 4 to 13 years
Plant, furniture and general equipment 5 to 23 years
Computing, communications and software (a) 1 to 15 years
Marine craft 8 to 19 years

Works of art controlled by the Institute are classified as property, plant and equipment which are anticipated to have very long and indefinite useful
lives. 

Their service potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed during the reporting period and so no depreciation has been recognised.

(a) Software that is integral to the operation of related hardware.

(h) Intangible assets
Capitalisation/Expensing of assets
Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally generated intangible assets costing $50,000 or more, are capitalised. The
cost of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful life. Costs incurred below these thresholds are recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

All acquired and internally developed intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.  For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost
is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the expected benefit (estimated useful life) on the straight
line basis using rates which are reviewed annually.  All intangible assets controlled by the Institute have a finite useful life and zero residual value.
The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are:

Software (a) 3 to 4 years

(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware.

Note that intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation but must be tested annually for impairment. Intangible
assets can only be revalued to fair value where an active market exists.

Licences
Licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development costs incurred for an individual project are carried forward when the future recoverability
can reasonably be regarded as assured and the total project costs are likely to exceed $50,000. Other development costs are expensed as incurred.

Computer software
Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is treated as property, plant and equipment. Software that is not an integral part of the
related hardware is treated as an intangible asset. Software costing less than $5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition.

Web site costs 
Web site costs are charged as expenses when they are incurred unless they relate to the acquisition or development of an asset when they may be
capitalised and amortised. Generally, costs in relation to feasibility studies during the planning phase of a website, and ongoing costs of
maintenance during the operating phase are expensed. Costs incurred in building or enhancing a web site, to the extent that they represent
probable future economic benefits that can be reliably measured, are capitalised.

Financial Statements
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(i) Impairment of assets
Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Where there
is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. As the Institute is a not-for-profit entity,
unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
depreciated replacement cost.

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated, where the replacement cost is
falling or where there is a significant change in useful life.

Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or
expiration of assets’ future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs or a significant change in useful life.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at the end of each reporting
period irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment.

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by
reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value is determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of
impairment and the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. 

See note 26 ‘Impairment of assets’ for the outcome of impairment reviews and testing. See note 2(p) ‘Receivables’ and note 22 ‘Receivables’ for
impairment of receivables.

(j) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale are recognised at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and are
presented separately from other assets in the Statement of Financial Position. Assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

(k) Leases
The Institute has entered into operating lease arrangements for buildings and motor vehicles. Lease payments are expensed on a straight line basis
over the lease term as this represents the pattern of benefits derived from the leased buildings and motor vehicles.

(l)  Financial instruments
In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the Institute has two categories of financial instruments:

Financial assets
•  cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash and cash equivalents)
•  receivables

Financial liabilities
•  payables

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value. Usually the transaction cost or face value is equivalent to fair value
and sub-sequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because there is no interest rate applicable and
subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include restricted cash and cash equivalents. These are comprised of
cash on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. 

(n) Accrued salaries
The accrued salaries suspense account (see note 20 ‘Restricted cash and cash equivalents’) consists of amounts paid annually into a suspense
account over a period of ten financial years to largely meet the additional cash outlay in each eleventh year when 27 pay days occur instead of the
normal 26.

Accrued salaries (see note 27 ‘Payables’) represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year, as the end of the last pay
period for that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial year. Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial year
end. The Institute considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its net fair value.

(o) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are assigned by the method most appropriate to each particular class
of inventory, with the majority being valued on a first in first out basis.

Inventories not held for resale are valued at cost unless they are no longer required, in which case they are valued at net realisable value. 
See note 21 ‘Inventories’.
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(p) Receivables
Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts (impairment). The collectability
of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written off against the allowance account. The
provision for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the Institute will not be able to collect the
debts. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days. See note 2(l) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 22
‘Receivables’.

(q) Payables
Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Institute becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or
services. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are generally settled within 30 days. See note 2(l) ‘Financial instruments’ and note
27 ‘Payables’.

(r) Borrowings
All loans payable are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the net proceeds received. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. See note 2(l) ‘Financial instruments’.

(s) Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and/or amount and are recognised where there is a present legal, equitable or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. See note 28 ‘Provisions’.

(i)  Provisions – employee benefits
Annual leave and long service leave
The liability for annual and long service leave expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period is recognised and measured at
the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Annual and long service leave expected to be settled more than
twelve months after the reporting period is measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Leave
liabilities are in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary components such
as employer superannuation contributions. In addition, the long service leave liability also considers the experience of employee departures and
periods of service.

The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to
maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

A liability for long service leave is recognised after an employee has completed four years of service. An actuarial assessment of long service leave
undertaken by Price Waterhouse Coopers Securities Ltd Actuaries at 31 December 2009 determined that the liability measured using the short hand
method was not materially different from the liability measured using the present value of expected future payments. The shorthand method is
compliant with AASB 119 ‘Employee Benefits’.

All annual leave and unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Institute does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Deferred Leave
The provision for deferred leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into an agreement to self-fund an additional twelve months
leave in the fifth year of the agreement. The provision recognises the value of salary set aside for employees to be used in the fifth year. The liability
is measured on the same basis as annual leave. Deferred leave is reported as a non current provision until the fifth year.

Superannuation
The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) in accordance with legislative requirements administers public sector superannuation
arrangements in WA.

Employees may contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme now closed to new members or the Gold State
Superannuation (GSS) Scheme, a defined benefit lump sum scheme also closed to new members. Both schemes are administered by the
Government Employees Superannuation Scheme (GESB).

The Institute has no liabilities for superannuation charges under those schemes, as the liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the
unfunded GSS Scheme transfer benefits due to members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer. All other GSS
Scheme obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made by the Institute to the GESB. The concurrently funded part of the GSS Scheme is
a defined contribution scheme as these contributions extinguish all liabilities in respect of the concurrently funded GSS Scheme obligations.

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the Pension or the GSS Schemes became non-
contributory members of the West State Superannuation (WSS) Scheme. Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became
members of the GESB Super (GESBS) Scheme. Both of these schemes are accumulation schemes. The Institute makes concurrent contributions to
GESB on behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. These
contributions extinguish the liability for superannuation charges in respect of the WSS and GESBS Schemes.
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The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and the GSS Scheme transfer benefits and is recouped from the Treasurer
for the employer’s share. See also note 2(t) ‘Superannuation expense’.

(ii)  Provisions – other
Employment on-costs 
Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are recognised separately as expenses and
liabilities when the employment, to which they relate, has occurred. Employment on-costs are included as part of  ‘Other expenses’ and are not
included as part of the Institute’s ‘Employee benefits expense’. The related liability is included in ‘Employment on-costs provision’. (See note 10
‘Other expenses’ and note 28 ‘Provisions’.)

(t)  Superannuation expense
The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises of employer contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent
contributions), the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS), and the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS).

The GSS  Scheme is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government reporting. However, apart from the transfer
benefit, it is a defined contribution plan for agency purposes because the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the Institute to
GESB extinguish all of the Institute’s obligations to the related superannuation liability.

(u) Resources received free of charge or for nominal cost
Resources received free of charge or for nominal cost that can be reliably measured are recognised as income and as assets or expenses, as
appropriate, at fair value.

(v) Comparative figures
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the current financial year. 

3 Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies

The judgements that have been made in the process of applying accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements include:

Operating Lease Commitments
The Institute has entered into a commercial lease and has determined that the lessor retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the property. Accordingly, the lease has been classified as an operating lease.

4 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key estimates and assumptions made concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty as at the end of the reporting
period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
include:

•  Estimating useful life and residual values of key assets
•  Estimating depreciated replacement cost
•  Long service leave - retention rates and discount rates
•  Annual land and building valuations

5 Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard
The Institute has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
that impacted on the Institute:

AASB 101 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (September 2007). This Standard has been revised and introduces a number of terminology
changes as well as changes to the structure of the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Comprehensive Income. It is now a
requirement that owner changes in equity be presented separately from non-owner changes in equity. There is no financial impact from this
application. 

Review of AAS 27 ‘Financial Reporting by Local Governments’, AAS 29 ‘Financial Reporting by Government Departments’ and AAS 31 ‘Financial
Reporting by Governments’. The AASB has made the following pronouncements from its short term review of AAS 27, AAS 29 and AAS 31: 

•  AASB 1004 ‘Contributions’;
•  AASB 1050 ‘Administered Items’;
•  AASB 1051 ‘Land Under Roads’;
•  AASB 1052 ‘Disaggregated Disclosures’;

AASB 2007-9 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the review of AASs 27, 29 and 31 [AASB 3, AASB 5, AASB 8, AASB 101,
AASB 114, AASB 116, AASB 127 & AASB 137]; and 

Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’.

The existing requirements in AAS 27, AAS 29 and AAS 31 have been transferred to the above new and revised topic-based Standards and
Interpretation. These requirements remain substantively unchanged. AASB 1050, AASB 1051 and AASB 1052 do not apply to Statutory Authorities.
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The other Standards and Interpretation make some modifications to disclosures and provide additional guidance (for example, Australian
Guidance to AASB 116 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ in relation to heritage and cultural assets has been introduced), otherwise there is no
financial impact.

AASB 2007-10 ‘Further Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 101’. This amending Standard changes the term
‘general purpose financial report’ to “general purpose financial statements”, where appropriate in Australian Accounting Standards and the
Framework to better align with IFRS terminology. There is no financial impact resulting from the application of this standard.

AASB 2009-2 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments [AASB 4, AASB 7, AASB 1023
& AASB 1038]’. This Standard amends AASB 7 and will require enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements and liquidity risk with respect
to financial instruments. There is no financial impact from this application.

Voluntary changes in accounting policy
There have been no voluntary changes in accounting policy.

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
The Institute cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 ‘Application of Australian Accounting
Standards and Other Pronouncements’. Consequently, the Institute has not applied early the following Australian Accounting Standards that have
been issued and which may impact the Institute but are not yet effective. Where applicable, the Institute plans to apply these Australian Accounting
Standards from their application date:

Title Operative for reporting periods

ASB 2008-13 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB Interpretation 17 – Distributions 1-Jul-09
of Non-cash Assets to Owners [AASB 5 & AASB 110]’. This Standard amends AASB 5 ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale 
and Discontinued Operations’ in respect of the classification, presentation and measurement of non-current assets held 
for distribution to owners in their capacity as owners. This may impact on the presentation and classification of Crown 
land held by the Authority where the Crown land is to be sold by the Department of Regional Development and Lands 
(formerly Department for Planning and Infrastructure). The Authority does not expect any financial impact when the Standard 

is first applied prospectively

Changes in Accounting Estimates
There have been no changes in accounting estimates.

6 Employee benefits expense

Wages and salaries (a) 43,174,315  41,014,829
Superannuation - defined contribution plans (b) 4,161,088  3,944,287
Long service leave (c) 2,206,185 1,269,304
Annual leave (c) 2,958,635  3,359,229
Other 473,792 518,095

52,974,015 50,105,744

(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefit tax component.
(b) Defined contribution plans include West State, and Gold State and GESB Super Scheme (contributions paid).

(In 2008, the reporting of notional superannuation expense and equivalent notional income has been discontinued.)
(c) Includes a superannuation contribution component.

Employment on-costs such as workers’ compensation insurance are included at note 10 ‘Other expenses’. The 
employment on-costs liability is included at note 28 ‘Provisions’.

7 Supplies and services

Consumables and minor equipment  4,222,912  4,539,826
Communication expenses 673,468 650,687
Utilities expenses 1,575,806  1,406,777
Consultancies and contracted services 5,679,433  6,759,489
Minor works 1,900,069 3,490,510
Repairs and maintenance 215,816 383,736
Operating lease and hire charges 1,367,935  1,246,325
Travel and passenger transport 182,202 320,733
Advertising and public relations 404,420 838,292
Supplies and services – other 560,252 555,274

16,782,313 20,191,649
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8 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation
Buildings 2,745,355  2,478,976
Leasehold improvements – buildings  1,241,286 825,132
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers 113,859 154,806
Plant, furniture and general equipment 1,086,672 970,324
Computers and communication network 177,011 320,166
Marine craft 61,245 60,856
Total depreciation and amortisation 5,425,428 4,810,260

9 Grants and subsidies 

Payments to non-TAFE providers for VET service delivery 23,161 51,775
Other 25,982 34,572

49,143 86,347

10 Other expenses

Building maintenance 913,979 1,346,094
Doubtful debts expense (117,658) 497,245
Employment on-costs (a) 3,800,561 3,298,946
Donations 500 455
Student prizes and awards 28,471 46,588
Losses and write-offs  7,193 42,382
Other (b) 388,200 69,385

5,021,246 5,301,095

(a) Includes workers’ compensation insurance and other employment on-costs. The on-costs liability associated
with the recognition of annual and long service leave liability is included at note 28 ‘Provisions’. Superannuation 
contributions accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment 
on-costs.

(b) Includes refund of revenue from prior year, exchange losses etc.

11 Fee for service 

Fee for service - general 6,402,446 5,733,301
Fee for service - Department of Education 362,638 535,765
Fee for service - Government (other than Department of Education) 79,498 54,241
Adult community education fees 620,199 491,622
International division fees 4,386,598 2,274,347

11,851,379 9,089,276

12 Student fees and charges

Tuition fees 4,310,669 3,967,899
Enrolment fees 29,009 31,492
Resource fees 3,847,646 3,107,372
Other Institute fees 140,384 155,685

8,327,708 7,262,448

13 Ancillary trading 

Live works (not a trading activity) 887,511 833,994
Contracting and consulting 258,459 362,936
Other ancillary revenue 24,184 55,040

1,170,154 1,251,970
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14 Trading profit

(a) Bookshop:
Sales 777,862 828,427

Cost of sales:
Opening inventory (209,344) (199,855)
Purchases (732,255) (655,818)

(941,599) (855,673)
Closing inventory 313,729 209,344
Cost of goods sold (627,870) (646,329)

149,992 182,098

See note 2(o) ‘Inventories’ and note 21 ‘Inventories’.

15 Commonwealth grants and contributions

Commonwealth specific purpose grants and contributions 1,912,536 15,046
1,912,536 15,046

These grants include Better TAFE Facilities Funds, as well as Apprentice and Trainee incentive payments.

16 Interest revenue

Interest revenue (from funds on deposit at the Commonwealth Bank) 214,944 466,564

17 Other revenue

Rental and facilities fees 131,942 204,621
Other direct grants and subsidy revenue -   89,681
Copyright and royalties revenue 422 451
Sponsorship and donations revenue 15,902 13,742
Recoup expenses from external organisations 578,707 1,128,403
Salary Recoups 304,646 406,860
Workers Compensation Recoups 102,838 232,262
Other 341,579 362,655

1,476,036 2,438,675

18 Net (loss) on disposal of non-current assets

Costs of disposal of non-current assets
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers (168,801) (211,474)
Plant, furniture and general equipment (5,214) (8,297)
Computers and communication network (8,545) (1,230)
Total cost of disposal of non-current assets (182,560) (221,001)

Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers 148,091 210,863
Plant, furniture and general equipment 74 3
Computers and communication network -   5,135
Total proceeds from disposal of non-current assets 148,165  216,001
Net (loss) (34,395) (5,000)

19 Income from State Government

State funds (received from Department of Education and Training):
Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) 51,648,637 44,265,572
Superannuation (a) 4,161,088 3,944,287
Other recurrent funds 116,082 1,761,075
Total State funds 55,925,807 49,970,934

Resources received free of charge determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by agencies (b):
Department of Education
- Corporate systems support 483,876 1,016,144
- Marketing and publications 155,814 159,751
- Human resources, and industrial relations support 210,731 154,741
- Other 269,533 690
Total resources received free of charge 1,119,954  1,331,326
Total income from State Government 57,045,761 51,302,260
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(a) In 2008, the reporting of the notional superannuation expense and equivalent notional income has been discontinued.

Where the Treasurer or other entity has assumed a liability, the Institute recognises revenues equivalent to the 
amount of the liability assumed and an expense relating to the nature of the event or events that initially gave rise to the liability.

(b)  Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal cost, the Institute recognises 
revenues equivalent to the fair value of the assets and/or the fair value of those services that can be reliably 
measured and which would have been purchased if they were not donated, and those fair values shall be 
recognised as assets or expenses, as applicable. Where the contribution of assets or services are in the nature 
of contributions by owners, the Institute makes an adjustment direct to equity.

20 Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Better TAFE Facilities Funding (a) 1,721,782 -  
Specific Capital Equipment and Minor Works (b) 474,891 1,223,481
Provision for 27th Pay (c) 923,568 734,151

3,120,241 1,957,632

(a) Commonwealth Government funding of Better TAFE Facilities
(b) Capital equipment funding received from the former Department of Education and Training can only be spent for the nominated purpose.
(c) Provision for the 27th Pay- over a period of ten financial years cash is set aside to meet the additional  cash outlay in each eleventh year 

when 27 pay days occur instead of the normal 26.

21 Inventories

Inventories held for resale:
Bookshop (at cost) 313,728  209,344
Less: Provision for obsolete stock (142) -  

313,586 209,344
Total 313,586 209,344

See also not 2(o) ‘Inventories’ and note 14 ‘Trading profit/(loss)’.

22 Receivables

Current
Receivables - trade 1,225,370 1,981,115
Receivables - students 1,128,597 859,668
Accrued income 552,937 13,414
Allowance for impairment of receivables (739,361) (933,301)
GST receivable 213,905 222,142

2,381,448 2,143,038
Total current 2,381,448 2,143,038

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables:
Balance at start of year (933,301) (586,962)
Doubtful debts expense recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 117,658 (497,245)
Amount written off during the year 76,395 154,920
Amount recovered during the year (112) (4,014)
Balance at end of year (739,361) (933,301)

Credit Risk
[Institutes are required to disclose the following by class of financial instrument, per AASB 7.36:

(a) the amount that best represents its maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date without taking 
account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements (e.g. netting agreements that do not qualify for 
offset in accordance with AASB 132);
(b) in respect of the amount disclosed in (a), a description of collateral held as security and other credit enhancements;
(c) information about the credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired; and
(d) the carrying amount of financial assets that would otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have been renegotiated.]

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 2009  2008 
$  $ 



38 | CHALLENGER INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Ageing of receivables past due but not impaired based on the information provided to senior management, 
as at the end of the reporting period:
Not more than 3 months 863,621 1,195,701
More than 3 months but less than 6 months 275,811 479,068
More than 6 months but less than 1 year 278,553 222,048
More than 1 year 196,621 10,665

1,614,606 1,907,482

Receivables individually determined as impaired as at the end of the reporting period:

Carrying amount, before deducting any impairment loss 739,361 933,301
Impairment loss (739,361) (933,301)

-   -  

See also note 2(p) ‘Receivables’ and note 37 ‘Financial instruments’.

23 Other assets

Current
Prepayments 523,498 377,446
Total current 523,498 377,446

24 Property, plant and equipment

Land
At fair value (a) 78,560,000 81,260,000

78,560,000 81,260,000

Buildings
At fair value (a) 97,110,000 109,799,345
Accumulated depreciation -   (122,837)

97,110,000 109,676,508

Buildings under construction
Construction costs 622,131 459,669

622,131 459,669

Leasehold improvements
At cost 9,181,189 9,768,850
Accumulated depreciation (3,409,488) (2,755,864)

5,771,701 7,012,986

Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers
At cost 677,416 951,116
Accumulated depreciation (370,104) (365,042)

307,312 586,074

Plant,  furniture and general equipment
At cost 12,875,599 12,473,440
Accumulated depreciation (3,755,355) (2,695,783)

9,120,243 9,777,657

Computer equipment, communication network
At cost 2,056,311 1,935,471
Accumulated depreciation (1,721,163) (1,544,152)

335,148 391,319

Marine craft
At cost 920,633 912,429
Accumulated depreciation (764,535) (703,290)

156,098 209,138
191,982,633 209,373,352

(a) Freehold land and buildings were re-valued as at 1 July 2009 by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Landgate). 
The valuations were performed during the year ended 31 December 2009 and recognised at 31 December 2009. In undertaking 
the revaluation, fair value was determined by reference to the market value of land $11,500,000. For the remaining balance, fair value 
of land and buildings was determined on the basis of depreciated replacement cost. See note 2(g) ‘Property, plant and equipment’.
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Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting 
period are set out below. 

(a) Recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Where an asset measured at cost is written down to  recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Where an asset measured at fair value is written down to recoverable
amount, the loss is accounted for as a revaluation decrement.

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 2009  2008 
$  $ 

2009 Land Buildings
Construction

in progress
Leasehold

improvements

Motor vehicles,
caravans and

trailers 

Plant, furniture
and general
equipment 

Computer
equipment,

communication
network Marine craft Works of art  Total

Carrying amount at start
of year 

81,260,000 109,676,508 459,669 7,012,986 586,074 9,777,657 391,319 209,138 -   209,373,352 

Additions -   -   521,300 -   -   170,271 120,840 8,205 - 820,614 

Transfers -   89,779 (358,837) -   -   269,058  - - - -

Disposals -   -   -   -   (164,904) (10,071) - - - (174,975)

Revaluation increments (2,700,000) (9,910,931) - - -   -   -   -   -   (12,610,931)

Depreciation expense -   (2,745,355) -   (1,241,286) (113,859) (1,086,672) (177,011) (61,245) - (5,425,428)

Carrying amount at end
of year 78,560,000 97,110,000 622,131 5,771,701 307,312 9,120,243 335,148 156,098 -   191,982,633 

2008 Land Buildings
Construction

in progress
Leasehold

improvements

Motor vehicles,
caravans and

trailers 

Plant,  furniture
and general
equipment 

Computer
equipment,

communication
network Marine craft Works of art  Total

Carrying amount at start
of year

71,301,000 93,761,088 1,105,231 7,776,433 915,910 2,456,806 477,181 262,995 -   178,056,643 

Additions -   -   1,132,771 61,686 8,160 483,378 192,517 7,000 - 1,885,512 

Transfers - 9,849,364 (1,778,333) - 24,000 7,844,262 43,531 - - 15,982,825

Disposals -   -   -   -   (207,190) (36,465) (1,744) -   - (245,399)

Revaluation increments 9,959,000 8,545,031 -   -   -   -   - - - 18,504,031

Depreciation expense -   (2,478,976) -   (825,132) (154,806) (970,324) (320,166) (60,856) - (4,810,260)

Carrying amount at end
of year 81,260,000 109,676,507 459,669 7,012,987 586,074 9,777,657 391,319 209,138 -   209,373,352 
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25 Intangible assets

Computer software
At cost 144,909 144,909 
Accumulated amortisation (144,909) (144,909)

-   -

26 Impairment of assets

There were no indications of impairment of property plant, equipment and intangibles as at 31 December 2009.

The Institute held no goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful lifes during the reporting period and at the 
of the reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet available for use.

All surplus assets as at 31 December 2009 have either been classified as assets held for sale or written off.

27 Payables

Current 
Trade payables 77 296,921
GST payable 47,746 49,821
Accrued expenses 1,356,693 2,082,713
Accrued salaries and related costs 876,302 735,168
Total current 2,281,888 3,164,623

See also note 2(q) ‘Payables’ and note 37  ‘Financial Instruments’.

28 Provisions

Current
Employee benefits provision
Annual leave (a) 4,154,416 4,204,520
Long service leave (b) 3,084,490 2,436,674 
Salary deferment (d) 133,950 167,636

7,372,856 6,808,830 
Other provisions 495,606 417,761
Employment on-costs (c) 495,606 417,761
Total current 7,868,462 7,226,591

Non-current
Employee benefits provision
Annual leave
Long service leave (b) 3,144,820 2,273,733
Salary deferment 139,915 60,113

3,284,735 2,333,846

Other provisions 228,331 142,640
Employment on-costs (c) 228,331 142,640
Total non-current 3,513,066 2,476,486

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer 
settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement 
of the likeabilities will occur as follow:

Within 12 months of  the end of the reporting period 2,825,474 2,993,996
More than 12 months after  the end of the reporting period 1,328,942  1,210,524

4,154,416  4,204,520

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement
of the liabilities will occur as follows:

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 2,185,429 844,95
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 4,043,881 3,865,452

6,229,310 4,710,407

(c) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs 
including workers’ compensation insurance. The provision is the present value of expected future payments. The 
associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in note 10 ‘Other expenses’.
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Movements in other provisions
Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee benefits, are set out below.

Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of year 560,401 473,427
Additional provisions recognised 394,412 284,589
Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits (230,877) (197,615)
Carrying amount at end of year 723,936 560,401 

(d) Salary deferment liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement 
for at least 12 months after balance sheet date. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as follows:

Within 12 months of balance sheet date 133,950 167,636
More than 12 months after balance sheet date 139,915 60,113

273,865 227,749

29 Other liabilities

Current 
Income received in advance (a) 38,873 382,767
Money/deposits held in trust 43,989 43,947
Other 364,896 168,950
Total current liabilities 447,758 595,664

(a) Income received in advance comprises:

Fee for service 19,033 271,353
Student fees and charges 19,840 111,414

38,873 382,767

30 Derivatives

Foreign exchange forward contract 24,378 379,058
Amount due to the Treasurer 24,378 379,058

The Institute has an exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates resulting from the contract to purchase a 
binary distillation column from Canada. This requires payment for the tower to be made in Canadian Dollars. 
The Institute uses a forward exchange contract , transacted with WATC, in Canadian Dollars to hedge this risk.

At the balance sheet date the net fair value of this contract was an asset of $24,378 (2008 : $379,058) and a 
liability of $24,378 (2008 : $379,058) 

At balance sheet date, the details of outstanding foreign exchange contracts are: 
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2009 2008

$ $

Sell AUD Average Exchange Rate

Buy Canadian Dollars

Maturity

0 - 6 months 28,817 391,955 0.79250 0.81415

Over one year -   -   -   -  
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31 Equity

Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Institute. The Government holds the equity interest in the 
net assets of the Institute. The Government holds the equity interest in the Institute on behalf of the community.

The asset revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets.

Contributed equity
Balance at start of year 42,592,471 26,180,393

Contributions by owners
Capital contribution (a) -   16,412,078
Balance at end of year 42,592,471 42,592,471

(a) Capital Contributions (appropriations) and non-discretionary (non-reciprocal) transfers of net assets from 
other State Government agencies have been designated as contributions by owners in Treasurer’s Instruction TI 955 
Contribution by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities’ and are credited directly to equity. Included in 
contributed equity were DET Non Cash Grants for Nil 2009 ($429,253 2008).

Reserves
Asset revaluation surplus
Balance at start of year 122,239,978 103,735,947
Net revaluation increments/(decrements)
Land (2,700,000) 9,959,000
Buildings (9,910,931) 8,545,031

109,629,047 122,239,978

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Balance at start of year 37,711,787 46,203,545
Result for the period 1,861,970  (8,491,758)
Balance at end of year 39,573,757 37,711,787

32 Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year, as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items 
in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

Cash on hand 16,139 16,839
Cash advances 3,229 3,229
Cash at bank 6,066,651 479,086
Short term deposits (At call) 1,499,024 1,447,634

7,585,043 1,946,788
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (refer to note 20 ‘Restricted cash and cash equivalents’) 3,120,241  1,957,632

10,705,284 3,904,420

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities
Net cost of services (55,183,789) (59,794,018)

Non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 5,425,428 4,810,260
Doubtful debts expense (117,658) 497,245
Superannuation expense 4,161,088  3,944,287
Resources received free of charge 1,119,954 1,760,579
Net (gain)/loss on sale of property, plant  and equipment 34,395 5,000
Losses and write-offs (excludes cash shortages/thefts of money) 7,193 42,382

(Increase)/decrease in assets:

Current receivables (c) 410,535 (517,587)
Current inventories (104,243) (22,198)
Other current assets (669,043) 62,308
Current payables (c) (1,224,555) 1,152,214
Current provisions 641,872  1,184,892 

Other current liabilities 195,985 (210,792)
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Non-current provisions 1,036,580 209,198

Net GST receipts/(payments) (a) (1,141,062) (1,375,611)
Change in GST in receivables/payables (b) 1,147,224 1,318,160

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (44,260,096) (46,933,681)

(a) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions
(b) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables
(c) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the receivable/payable
in respect of the sale/purchase of non-current assets are not included as they are not reconciling items.

33 Commitments

Capital expenditure commitments
Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital expenditure additional to the amounts reported in the 
financial statements, are payable as follows:

Within 1 year 155,628 607,369
155,628 607,369

The capital commitments include amounts for:
Plant & Equipment 155,628 607,369

Lease commitments
Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised in the
financial statements, are payable as follows:

Within 1 year 938,652 979,056
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 2,347,057 2,886,573
Later than 5 years 1,739,863 2,297,598

5,025,572 6,163,227

Representing:
Non-cancellable operating leases 5,025,572 6,163,227

5,025,572 6,163,227

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments
Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:

Within 1 year 938,652 979,506
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 2,347,057  2,886,573
Later than 5 years 1,739,863 2,297,598

5,025,572 6,163,677

The non-cancellable operating leases relate to property leases and State Fleet motor vehicle leases.
The main property lease relates to the Fleet Street Fremantle facility leased from the Fremantle Port Authority, 
with eight years remaining, with rent payable monthly in advance. Contingent rent provisions within the lease 
agreement require the minimum lease payments shall be reviewed three yearly with the next review due on 31 October 2012.

Other expenditure commitments contracted for at the end of the reporting period date but not recognised as liabilities 
are payable as follows:
Within 1 year 1,834,414  1,661,337

1,834,414 1,661,337

These commitments are all inclusive of GST.

34 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities
There are no contingent liabilities or contingent assets.

35 Events occurring after the reporting period

No events occurred after balance date that would have a significant impact on the Institutes’ financial position as at 31 December 2009.
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36 Explanatory Statement

Significant variations between estimates and actual results for income and expense are shown below. 
Significant variations are considered to be those greater than $500,000.

Significant variations between estimated and actual results for 2009

2009 2009 
Estimate Actual Variation

$ $ $

Expense
1.Employee expenses 47,244,360 52,974,015 (5,729,655)
2.Supplies and services 17,624,453 16,782,313 842,140
3.Other expenses 3,650,955 5,021,246 (1,370,291)

Income
4.Fee for service 9,378,566 11,851,379 (2,472,813)
5.Student fees and charges 6,357,040 8,327,708 (1,970,668)
6.Commonwealth grants and contributions 100,000 1,912,536 (1,812,536)
7.Service Appropriation 47,527,995 55,925,807 (8,397,812)

1. Employee expenses – increased expenditure on salaries due to significant growth in profile and non-profile delivery.
2. Supplies and services – decreased as the Resources Provided Free of Charge  was significantly below the Estimate.
3. Other expenses – increased expenditure on Employee on-costs due to growth in delivery and increased building maintenance expenditure.
4. Fee for service – increased due to an upsurge in enrolments for international students.
5. Student fees and charges – increased revenue due to significant growth in delivery.
6. Commonwealth grants and contributions – $1.9 million received through Commonwealth Funded Better TAFE Facilities Funding 

not budgeted for.
7. Service Appropriation – increased funding due to significant growth in profile delivery.

Significant variations between actual results for 2009 and 2008

2009 2008 Variance
$ $ $

Expense
8.Employee expenses 52,974,015 50,105,744 (2,868,271)
9.Supplies and services 16,782,313 20,191,649 3,409,336
10.Depreciation and amortisation expense 5,425,428 4,810,260 (615,168)

Income
11.Fee for Service 11,851,379 9,089,276 2,762,103
12.Student fees and charges 8,327,708 7,262,448 1,065,260
13.Commonwealth grants and contributions 1,912,536 15,046 1,897,490
14.Other revenue 1,476,036 2,438,675 (962,639)
15.Service Appropriations 55,925,807 49,970,934 5,954,873

8. Employee expenses – increased expenditure on salaries due to significant growth in profile and non-profile delivery.
9. Supplies and services – decreased as expenditure associated with upgrades for ACEPT, Automotive Centre, Hospitality, and

Metals Trade Upgrade wound down in 2009, plus reduction in Resources Provided Free of Charge and advertising.
10. Depreciation and amortisation expense – increased building depreciation and amortisation of the balance of leasehold building

improvement for vacated leased.
11. Fee for Service – increased due to an upsurge in international students and general fee for service activity.
12. Student fees and charges – increased revenue due to significant growth in delivery.
13. Commonwealth grants and contributions – $1.9 million received through Commonwealth Funded Better TAFE Facilities Funding.
14. Other revenue – decreased due to reduced recoups from external parties.
15. Service Appropriations – increased funding due to significant growth in profile delivery, partially offset by no equipment grants in 2009.

37 Financial instruments

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies
Financial instruments held by the Institute are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, 
loans, finance leases, borrowings and receivables and payables. The Institute has limited exposure to financial 
risks. The Institute’s overall risk management program focus on managing the risk identified below:
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Credit risk
The Institute trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. The Institute has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition, 
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Institute’s exposure to debt is 
minimal. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk.

Liquidity risk
The Institute has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including draw downs of appropriations by 
monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.

Market risk
The Institute does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks (for example, 
equity securities or commodity prices changes). The Institute is not  exposed to interest rate risk because 
interest rates relates primarily to the long-term debt obligations. The Institute’s borrowings are all obtained through 
the Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC) and are at fixed rates with varying maturities. The risk is 
managed by WATC through portfolio diversification and variation in maturity dates. Other than as detailed in the 
The Institute is not  exposed to interest rate risk because apart from minor amounts of restricted cash, all other  
cash and cash equivalents and a portion of restricted cash are non-interest bearing and it has no borrowings.

Forward exchange risks
The Institute is exposed to foreign risks arising from currency exposure to the Canadian dollar.

Forward contracts transacted with the WATC are used to manage these risks. The purpose of the foreign currency contracts 
is to protect against the risk that eventual dollar outflows in respect of purchases in foreign currency may be adversely 
affected by changes in the exchange rates.

(b) Categories of financial instruments
In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and 
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows: 2009 2008

$’000 $’000

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 7,585,043 1,946,788
Restricted cash  and cash equivalent 3,120,241 1,957,632
Receivables (a) 2,167,543 1,920,896
Loans and advances -   -  

Financial Liabilities

Payables 2,234,142 3,114,802
Bank overdraft
WATC/bank borrowings
Other borrowings
Finance lease liabilities
(a) The amount of loans and receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

(c) Financial instrument disclosures
Credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk exposures
The following table details the Institute’s maximum exposure to credit risk, and the exposure to liquidity risk and interest 
rate risk as at the reporting date, based on information provided to senior management of the Institute. The contractual 
maturity amounts in the table are representative of the undiscounted amounts as at the end of the reporting period. An 
adjustment for discounting has been made where material.

The Institute does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it holds.

The Institute does not hold any financial assets that had to have their terms renegotiated that would have otherwise 
resulted in them being past due or impaired.
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Institute’s financial assets and liabilities 
at the end of the reporting period on the surplus for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates. It is assumed that 
the change in interest rates is held constant throughout the reporting period.
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Contractual maturity dates

Weighted Carrying
Fixed

Interest
Variable
Interest 

Non-
Interest

Within  1
year 1-2 Years 2-5 Years 

More than
5 years Impaired

2009 % $ % $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 2.90% 7,585,043 -   7,585,043 -   -   -   -   

Restricted cash  and cash equivalent 2.90% 3,120,241 -   3,120,241 -   -   -   -   

Receivables 2,167,543 -   -   2,167,543 -   -   -   -   -   

12,872,826 -   10,705,284 2,167,543 -   -  -   -   -   

Financial Liabilities

Payables 2,234,142 -   -   2,234,142 -   -   -   -   -   

2,234,142 -   -   2,234,142 -   -  - -   -   

Contractual maturity dates

Weighted Carrying
Fixed

Interest
Variable
Interest 

Non-
Interest

Within  1
year 1-2 Years 2-5 Years 

More than
5 years Impaired

2008 % $ % $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 6.35% 1,946,788 -   1,946,788 -   -   -   -   

Restricted cash  and cash equivalent 6.35% 1,957,632 -   1,957,632 -   -   -   -   

Receivables 1,920,896 -   -   1,920,896 -   -   -   -   -   

5,825,316 -   3,904,420 1,920,896 -   -  -   -   -   

Financial Liabilities

Payables 3,114,802 -   -   3,114,802 -   -   -   -   -   

3,114,802 -   -   3,114,802 -   -  - -   -   
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Fair values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are 
recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.

38 Remuneration of members of the Institute and Senior Officers

Remuneration of members of the Institute
The number of members of the Institute whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary 
benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:

$
$0 - $10,000 11 10

$180,001  - $190,000 1 1

The total remuneration of the members of the Institute is: 193,620 186,571

Total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Institute in respect of members of the Institute.

Remuneration of Senior Officers
The number of senior officers other than senior officers reported as members of the Institute, whose total of fees, 
salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:

$
$50,001 - $60,000 1 -  

$110,001  - $120,000 -    1
$120,001  - $130,000 -    1
$130,001 - $140,000 2  2
$140,001 - $150,000 -    -  
$150,001 - $160,000 1  1
$180,001 - $190,000 1  -  

The total remuneration of senior officers is: 663,311 670,331

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Institute in respect of senior officers other 
than senior officers reported as members of the Institute.

No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme.
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- 100 Basis Points + 100 Basis Points

Carrying amount Profit Equity Profit Equity

2009 $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7,585,043 (75,850) (75,850) 75,850 75,850

Restricted cash and cash equivalent 3,120,241 (31,202) (31,202) 31,202 31,202

- 100 Basis Points + 100 Basis Points

Carrying amount Profit Equity Profit Equity

2008 $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,946,788 (19,468) (19,468) 19,468 19,468

Restricted cash and cash equivalent 1,957,632 (19,576) (19,576) 19,576 19,576
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39 Remuneration of auditor

Remuneration payable to the Auditor General in respect to the audit for the current financial year is as follows:

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators 115,000  110,000

The expense is included in note 10 ‘Other expenses’.

40 Related Bodies

The Institute has no related bodies.

41 Affiliated Bodies

The Institute has no affiliated bodies.

42 Supplementary Financial Information

Write-Offs
Bad debts 77,612 149,900
Inventory 6,751 7,439

43 Schedule of Income and Expenditure by Service

The Institute provides only one service (as defined by Treasurer’s Instruction 1101 (9) and that is Vocational 
Education and Training Delivery.
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CERTIFICATION OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

We hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to
assess the performance of Challenger Institute of Technology, and fairly represent the performance of Challenger Institute of
Technology for the financial year ended 31 December 2009.

Paddi Creevey Liz Harris
Chair Managing Director 
Challenger Institute of Technology Challenger Institute of Technology

Date: 9 March 2010 Date: 9 March 2010

Key Performance Indicators
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DESIRED OUTCOME

Challenger’s agency level desired outcome is the provision of vocational education and training services to meet community and
industry training needs.

The Institute’s mission is to ‘provide the highest quality vocational training, assessment and related services in support of individual career
aspirations and workforce development’. Coinciding with this is the strategic objective:

Providing industry-driven training and related services to meet workforce needs. 

KEY EFFECTIVENESS PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

To gauge our performance against our desired outcome, mission and the above strategic objective the Institute measures its success
against two independently run student satisfaction surveys – the TAFEWA State Satisfaction Survey and the National Centre for
Vocational Education Research (NCVER) Student Outcomes Survey. They have been used for three of the Institute’s Key Effectiveness
Performance Indicators.

1 TAFE WA Student Satisfaction Survey

The 2009 State Satisfaction Survey was administered on behalf of the Department of Training and Workforce Development
(formerly known as Department of Education and Training) by market research company Colmar Brunton. This survey is carried
out on an annual basis with its key focus being to attain an understanding of students’ training requirements and to measure the
quality of training and services delivered by Challenger. Full-time and part-time students enrolled in a course and/or qualification
at a TAFEWA college were asked to participate in the survey. To obtain optimal response rates data collection included an online
survey, mass market mail out and telephone interviews. 

To obtain an overall student satisfaction rating (our key performance indicator) students were asked ‘Overall, how satisfied were
you with your course?’ Responses were on a five-point scale where one is ‘very satisfied’ to five being ‘very dissatisfied’. The rating
was the total number of ‘satisfied’ and ‘very satisfied’ respondents from the Institute. 

Notes:

Source: Department of Education and Training (Colmar Brunton) Student Satisfaction Survey.

Derivation: Of the 5,451 population identified, 1,819 participated in the survey.  This represented a 33% response rate for the Institute.
The standard error for the survey is ± 0.77% at the 95% Confidence Interval. 

2 NCVER Student Outcomes Survey

The 2009 Student Outcomes Survey was conducted by the Social Research Centre on behalf of NCVER.  The survey focuses on
students’ outcomes and satisfaction with vocational education and training. This encompasses personal and training
characteristics, employment outcomes, further study activity, satisfaction with the training, whether they achieved their main
reason for undertaking the training, and how relevant it was to their current employment. 

Surveys were sent out to a sample of Challenger graduates who had successfully completed a qualification in the previous
reporting year.  This was stratified by study location, field of education, gender and age. 

2.1 Graduate Achievement Rating

The following effectiveness key performance indicator measures the extent to which Challenger graduates have fully or partly
achieved their main reason for undertaking their training (course/qualification). 

Key Performance Indicators

Table 1: Overall Student Satisfaction Rating

2004 Actual 2005 Actual 2006 Actual 2007 Actual 2008 Actual 2009 Target 2009 Actual 
Variation

2009 Actual
vs Target

Challenger 82.2% 84% 85% 83.4% 84.9% WA average 84% -1.6%

Western Australia 84.7%. 85% 86% 86.8% 85.4% n.a. 85.6%
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Notes:

Source: Student Outcomes Survey, NCVER. 

Derivation: Of the 7,524 population identified, 1,004 participated in the survey. This represented a 13.3% response rate. The standard
error for the survey is ± 2.6% at the 95% Confidence Interval. 

Explanatory Note: The Institute is unable to provide statistically valid Institute level data for 2004, 2006 and 2008 as it was not
available. Commencing from 2005 statistically reliable Institute level data has been available from NCVER. This is available biennially. 

2.2 Graduate Destination Rating

The Graduate Destination Rating measures the extent to which the Institute is providing relevant quality training that improves
student employability.  

Key Performance Indicators

Table 2: Graduate Achievement Rating (Main Reason for Training)

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Target 2009 Actual
Variation 2009

Actual vs
Target

Challenger n.a. 81% n.a. 83.5% n.a. 84.5% 84.5% 0.0%

Western
Australia

n.a. 84% n.a. 86.9% n.a. 87.8 %

Australia n.a. 86% n.a. 86.7% n.a. 86.4%

Table 3.1: Graduate Destination Rating (Employed)

Employed Variation
2009 Actual
vs Target*2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Target 2009 Actual

Challenger n.a. 76% n.a. 79.6% n.a. 80.6% 78.0% -2.6%

Western
Australia

n.a. 78% n.a. 83% n.a. 78.9%

Australia n.a. 79% n.a. 81% n.a. 77.8%

*Variation: In 2009, there was a marked deterioration in the South West Corridor regional labour market due to the impact of the
global economic crisis (South West Corridor Workforce Development Plan, June 2009). Sudden shocks to the economy are beyond the
control of normal Institute planning processes. The 1.6% decline in the employment rate for Challenger graduates between 2007
and 2009 was less than the State average decline of 4.1%.

Table 3.2: Graduate Destination Rating (Unemployed)

Unemployed Variation
2009 Actual
vs Target^2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Target 2009 Actual

Challenger n.a. 11% n.a. 5.7% n.a. 5.2% 9.3% +4.1%

Western
Australia

n.a. 9% n.a. 6.2% n.a. 10.1%

Australia n.a. 10% n.a. 8.7% n.a. 11.3%

^Variation: The 3.6% increase in unemployment of Challenger graduates between 2007 and 2009 was less than the 3.9% increase
recorded for Western Australia. The higher rate of unemployment of Challenger graduates in 2009 is a product of graduates'
decisions about participation in the labour force. The increase in the percentage of those graduates not able to find work is less a
reflection on the success of graduates in finding work and more a result of the increasing proportion of graduates who are actually
seeking to enter the labour force during this period. See comment regarding the 2.6% reduction in 'not in the labour force' below.
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Notes:

Source: Student Outcomes Survey, NCVER.

Derivation: Graduate labour force status was derived according to the Australian Bureau of Statistics’ definition of employed,
unemployed and not in the labour force. Of the 7,524 population identified, 1,004 participated in the survey. This represented a 13.3%
response rate.  The standard error for the survey is ± 2.6% at the 95% Confidence Interval. 

Explanatory Note: The Institute is unable to provide statistically valid Institute level data for 2004, 2006 and 2008 as it was not
available. Commencing from 2005 statistically reliable Institute level data has been available from NCVER. This is available on a
biennial basis. 

3 Achievement of Institute Profile

This performance indicator reports the effectiveness of the Institute in meeting Delivery and Performance Agreement targets,
enabling customer needs to be achieved, through which Challenger is resourced to deliver courses under Government purchased
funding guidelines. This purchased delivery took into consideration the needs of the local community, individuals and the training
plans of industry. The diversity of the delivery indicates the extent to which the Institute has met the strategic training needs of the
state as defined in the State Training Profile.

3.1  Profile Analysis for Challenger

Profile Analysis for Challenger (Effectiveness Indicator) details the total number of Student Contact Hours (SCH) delivered against
the Delivery and Performance Agreement.

Key Performance Indicators

Table 3.3: Graduate Destination Rating (Not in Labour Force)

Not in Labour Force Variation
2009 Actual
vs Target §2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Target 2009 Actual

Challenger n.a. 12% n.a. 14.6% n.a. 13.6% 12.3% -1.3%

Western
Australia

n.a. 13% n.a. 10.6% n.a. 10.7%

Australia n.a. 11% n.a. 9.9% n.a. 10.4%

§Variation: From 2007 to 2009, less Challenger graduates chose to remain outside the workforce. This choice and the resulting
increase in labour market participation was probably a reflection of graduates’ decreased confidence as a result of the uncertain
economic conditions during 2008-09. Activities outside the labour force e.g. further study are often deferred in such times.
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Key Performance Indicators

Table 4: Profile Analysis for Challenger

WADT Industry Groups

2007 2008 2009

Actual
Profile
(SCH)

Actual
Profile
(SCH)

Planned
Profile
(SCH)

Actual
Profile
(SCH)

Variation
Planned vs

Actual (SCH)

Variation
Planned vs
Actual %+

01A Recreation Sports and Entertainment 102,374 106,621 87,712 105,861 18,149 20.7%

01B Visual and Performing Arts 21,399 45,027 52,461 42,182 -10,279 -19.6%

02A Automotive 99,734 105,217 154,756 161,548 6,792 4.4%

03A Building and Construction 271,675 289,806 274,272 416,455 142,183 51.8%

03B Surveying and Building 24,410 18,470 23,400 16,080 -7,320 -31.3%

04A Community Service Workers 245,188 229,970 208,445 289,490 81,045 38.9%

04B Education and Childcare 167,701 216,081 196,942 220,999 24,057 12.2%

04C Health 58,091 94,437 113,380 165,903 52,523 46.3%

05A Finance Insurance Property Service Workers 17,399 20,176 36,870 18,668 -18,202 -49.4%

06A Food Trades and Processing 10,760 10,030 12,810 10,514 -2,296 -17.9%

07A Clothing Footwear and Soft Furnishings 35,394 36,431 44,750 42,110 -2,640 -5.9%

09A Engineering and Drafting 167,570 161,602 157,020 155,279 -1,741 -1.1%

09B Metal and Mining 314,892 377,266 313,420 289,523 -23,897 -7.6%

10A Animal Care 40,960 45,601 43,596 68,040 24,444 56.1%

10B Forestry, Farming and Landcare 132,325 111,465 135,639 102,440 -33,199 -24.5%

10C Fishing 58,755 35,298 28,380 30,875 2,495 8.8%

10D Horticulture 221,699 210,381 196,455 236,713 40,258 20.5%

11A Process Manufacturing 106,076 200,288 139,890 167,042 27,152 19.4%

12A Personal Service 160,794 180,250 168,917 185,470 16,553 9.8%

12B Retail 46,449 51,564 43,407 49,941 6,534 15.1%

13A Cooking 67,451 59,378 49,474 74,124 24,650 49.8%

13B Hospitality 87,875 69,705 93,373 137,544 44,171 47.3%

13C Tourism 43,089 64,236 47,528 66,045 18,517 39.0%

13D Travel Agents 13,970 0 0 0 n.a. n.a.

14A Transport Trades, Storage and Associated 222,080 249,238 224,400 265,713 41,313 18.4%

15A Electrical and Electronic Engineering 66,246 94,519 85,480 97,449 11,969 14.0%

15B Electrical Trades 165,918 168,927 158,272 155,917 -2,355 -1.5%

16A Accounting and Other Business Services 109,480 132,205 130,400 157,095 26,695 20.5%

16B Management 111,375 99,240 131,399 117,810 -13,589 -10.3%

16C Office and Clerical 160,581 179,985 182,380 200,475 18,095 9.9%

17A Computing 214,580 214,725 173,232 236,605 63,373 36.6%

18A Science and Technical Workers 83,540 83,640 107,391 168,529 61,138 56.9%

19B Adult Literacy/ESL 95,045 180,055 158,120 240,875 82,755 52.3%

19D Miscellaneous 2,740 0 0 0 n.a. n.a.

19E Targeted Access and Participation Courses 231,628 257,928 219,115 174,766 -44,349 -20.2%

Total 3,979,243 4,399,762 4,193,086 4,868,080 674,994 16.1%
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+ Variation: The initial Delivery Target for 2009 agreed with the Department of Training and Workforce Development was 4,193,086
SCH. During 2009 a number of increases were negotiated with the department so that addendums to the original agreement brought
the final agreed target for 2009 to 4,787,537 SCH, an increase of 594,451 SCH.

The substantial shift from the initial agreed target for 2009 and the final target was largely a result of the unexpectedly sudden shift in
the pattern of demand as the abrupt change in the global economic situation unfolded.  As more students than originally expected
made decisions to improve their employment prospects by seeking further training and employers found it easier to release workers
for training than during the previous boom periods the Institute was obliged to seek further resources to allow it to support the
unexpected level of demand.

Individual variations between planned and actual in the WADT industry groups, as shown in the preceding table, do not necessarily
reflect the accuracy of the planning process but can result from variations caused by the data reporting rules. All courses are linked to
the various WADT industry groups by rules external to the Institute's control.  For example, a small shift in pattern of demand by an
employer or industry in the choice of course may result in the delivery being calculated in a different group.  Variations in the
preceding table between planned and actual do not necessarily mean less training for a particular industry or employment type. 

Notes:

Source: Challenger Institute Delivery and Performance Agreement 2009 and the College Management Information System (CMIS).

Definition: The table indicates the quota and actual achievement of SCH in the profiled WADT (Department of Training and
Workforce Development) Group categories. The classification of these industry groups is based on the occupation or outcome the
course is intended to serve, and highlights the Institute’s performance in achieving industry delivery targets.

Derivation: DPA data represents the actual achievement of SCH in respective years. ‘Planned’ data is obtained from the DPA, and
‘actual’ SCH from the College Management Information System (CMIS).

3.2  Profile Achievement

This performance indicator shows the percentage of SCH achieved for activities as contracted with the Department of Training and
Workforce Development for vocational education and training delivery through the Delivery and Performance Agreement.

Profile Achievement =    Actual Delivery and Performance Agreement SCH Achieved

Target SCH contained within the Delivery and Performance Agreement (first agreement)

Notes:

Source: Challenger Institute of Technology Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA).

Derivation: DPA data represents the actual achievement of SCH in respective years.

Explanatory Note: Data previous to 2007 for Actual Profile (SCH) represents commencements, due to changes in reporting
procedures Actual Profile (SCH) from 2007 signifies end of study. The significance of the change has been to move from recording
student data from the date they commence to recording the data the date students’ study is completed. The overall shift in total value
in SCH between the two methods is minimal.

Key Performance Indicators

Table 5: Profile Achievement

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

104.58% 103.82% 100.60% 109.85% 116.10%
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KEY EFFICIENCY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

4 Overall Cost per SCH

The overall cost per SCH demonstrates the efficiency with which Challenger manages its resources to enable the provision of
vocational education and training programs.

Overall Cost =    2009 Actual Costs = Total Cost of Services

Total SCH

Notes:

Source: Financial statements and the College Management Information System (CMIS).

Derivation: The total delivery cost per SCH is calculated by dividing the total cost of services measured on an accrual basis by the
total SCH delivered. The total SCH is the total number of enrolments multiplied by the hourly duration of these modules as registered
in the College Management Information System in accordance with the Australian Vocational Education and Training Management
Information Statistical Standard. Delivery from all funding sources is included. The total cost of services figure is obtained from the
annual Financial Statements.

Explanatory Note: Data previous to 2007 for Actual Profile (SCH) represents commencements. Due to changes in reporting
procedures Actual Profile (SCH) from 2007 signifies end of study. The significance of the change has been to move from recording
student data from the date they commence to recording the data the date students’ study is completed. The overall shift in total value
in SCH between the two methods is minimal.

Glossary of Terms Used In the Key Performance Indicators

Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA)

Constitutes a resource agreement under the Vocational and Training Act 1996, between the Department of Training and Workforce
Development representing the Minister for Training and Workforce Development and Challenger Institute of Technology Governing
Council for the delivery of vocational education and training for the agreed calendar year.

Student Curriculum Hours (SCH)

The nominal hours assigned to a program of study by the curriculum or, in the absence of an endorsed curriculum, by common
agreement with the Department of Training and Workforce Development’s Statistical Unit.

WADT

WADT groups are industry categories originally derived from Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) industry categories. Although the
naming, WADT, no longer refers to WA Department of Training, the grouping arrangements for analysing training delivery, funding of
training hours and Delivery and Performance Agreement rules has remained.

Key Performance Indicators

Table 6: Cost per SCH

2005 Actual 2006 Actual 2007 Actual 2008 Actual 2009 Target 2009 Actual
Variation 2009

Actual vs Target #

$14.60 $15.22 $14.81 $14.16 $13.28 $12.74 -$0.54

# Variation: The reduction in cost per SCH was due to an 11% growth in delivery exceeding the growth in employee and other
expenses to meet the increasing growth.
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MINISTERIAL DIRECTIVES

In 2009, the Minister for Training and Workforce Development released Training WA, a ten-year plan for the West Australian training
system. Challenger Institute of Technology has responded by reviewing its strategic plan and ensuring alignment of its operations to
the strategic directions and targets set out in Training WA. Challenger reports on its contribution to Training WA objectives through its
strategic plan and business plan which are submitted to the Minister for approval.

OTHER FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

Pricing Policies of Services Provided

Fees and charges levied by the Institute were in accordance with the requirements of the following:

• Vocational Education and Training Act, 1996.

• Vocational Education and Training Regulations, 1996.

• Policy Guidelines for Publicly Funded Registered Training Organisations (RTO).

Capital Works

Capital Works Incomplete

Rockingham Building Trades Project 

Construction of a new facility will enable the transfer of building/construction, plumbing/gasfitting and electrical trades from the
Beaconsfield to Rockingham campus. Indicative budget is $28.6 million. 

Project definition plan has commenced and completion of detailed design and documentation is anticipated during 2010 with
building completion timetabled for 2012-2013.

Distillation Column Project

Building of an enclosure and installation of column will enhance oil and gas process plant training capability at the ACEPT campus.
Indicative budget is $1 million.

Detailed design and documentation completed during 2009 and enclosure is currently out to tender. Construction to be completed by
mid-2010.

Capital Projects Completed 

No capital projects were completed during 2009.

Employment and Industrial Relations

Staff Profile

Staff Development

Challenger has a commitment to the professional development of its employees. Our strategies are to build a highly skilled,
professional and adaptable workforce with the ability to respond to workforce development needs, as well as the needs of the
community and individuals.

In 2009, Challenger employees received more than 8,600 hours of in-house and external training. 

Workers’ Compensation

Fifteen claims for workers’ compensation were received in 2009, of which six were lost time injuries. In 2008 there were 20
compensation claims, including seven lost time injuries.

Disclosures and Legal Compliance

2009 2008

Average full-time equivalent including casual staff 676 681

Average headcount 877 877
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GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURES

Contracts with Senior Officers

At the date of reporting, other than normal contracts of employment of service, no senior officers, or firms of which senior officers
are members, or entities in which senior officers have substantial interests had any interests in existing or proposed contracts with
the Institute and senior officers.

OTHER LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

Compliance with Public Sector Management Act Section 31(1)

1 In the administration of Challenger Institute of Technology, I have complied with the Public Sector Standards in Human Resource
Management, the West Australian Public Sector Code of Ethics and Challenger Institute of Technology’s Code of Conduct.

2 I have put in place procedures designed to ensure such compliance and conducted appropriate internal assessments to satisfy
myself that the statement made in 1 is correct.

3 The applications made for breach of standards review and the corresponding outcomes for the reporting period are:

Number lodged: 1
Number of breaches found, including details of multiple breaches per application: 1
Number still under review: 0

Liz Harris
Managing Director
9 March 2010

Advertising (Electoral Act 1907 section 175ZE)

The Institute is required to report on expenditure incurred during the financial year in relation to advertising agencies, market
research organisations, polling organisations, direct mail organisations and media advertising organisations.

Details are as follows:

Expenditure with Advertising Agencies
Adcorp Australia $39,235
Marketforce Australia $2,253

Expenditure with Market Research Agencies $0

Expenditure with Polling Agencies $0

Expenditure with Direct Mail Agencies
PMP Home Media $6,878

Expenditure with Media Advertising Agencies
Media Decisions $130,623

TOTAL EXPENDITURE $178,989

Disclosures and Legal Compliance
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GOVERNMENT POLICY REQUIREMENTS

Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes

The Disability Services Act 1993 was amended in December 2004, creating a requirement for public authorities to develop and
implement Disability Access and Inclusion Plans (DAIP) and to report on its implementation in their annual report.

The following outlines Challenger’s current initiatives to address DAIP outcomes.

1 People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access the services of, and any events organised by,
Challenger.

• Access issues are addressed in procedures for excursions with links to the Disabilities Services Accessible Events Checklist.

• Appropriate adjustments are made at events such as live captioning or sign interpreters and portable ramps.

• DAIP is incorporated into directorate business plans.

• DAIP continually promoted to all new and current staff.

• DAIP in student induction/orientation package.

2 People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access the buildings and other facilities of Challenger.

• Access to facilities is audited and feedback obtained from staff and students at least once during the five year period of DAIP.

• Signage at campuses is improved, including large campus maps at entrances.

• Student support advisor is on the OSH committee.

• Evacuation procedures are reviewed for wheelchair users at double story campuses.

• Campuses being prepared for the arrival of higher support need students.

• Emergency buttons monitored in disabled toilets.

• Courses are located in accessible venues.

3 People with disabilities receive information from Challenger in a format that will enable them to access the information as readily
as other people.

• All forms and applications are available electronically.

• Accessible information available on the intranet.

• Accessible information training is included as part of the induction of new staff.

4 People with disabilities receive the same level and quality of service from the staff at Challenger.

• Establish the USIQ program for students with disabilities. 

• Lecturers prepared for the arrival of higher support need students by providing training.

• Induction training for new staff being established.

• Lecturing staff given practical guidance to reasonable adjustment in assessment of candidates with disability.

• Appropriate adjustments provided in classroom environments on request to improve student with disabilities learning. 

• Students with disabilities provided with individual support by Challenger specialist staff to complete their studies.

5 People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to make complaints to Challenger.

• Customer comment form made accessible, i.e. verbal customer comment form completed at front counter of each campus.

6 People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to participate in any public consultation with Challenger.

• External organisations associated with people with disabilities are consulted to address training and employment pathways for
students with disabilities.

• Community organisations have input into future courses at Challenger.

• All disability information is accessible to the community through maintenance and improvement of Challenger’s disability
webpage.

Disclosures and Legal Compliance
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Compliance with Public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes

In accordance with S31(1) of the Public Sector Management Act 1995, Challenger Institute of Technology implemented the following
measures to ensure compliance with public sector standards, the WA Code of Ethics and our own agency code of conduct.

• Misconduct and Complaints Management Framework implemented in cooperation with Department of Training and Workforce
Development. 

• Challenger Code of Conduct and Code of Ethics aligned with WA Public Sector Conduct Guide and made available on the intranet. 

• Guidelines and processes put in place ensuring senior management understand responsibilities and processes. 

• Code of conduct for Governing Council reviewed and re-endorsed in 2009. 

• Training was provided to 16 senior managers in code of ethics, code of conduct and risk management in relation to corruption
prevention measures. 

• 100% compliance with Crime and Corruption Commission requirements for investigations. 

• Conflict of Interest Toolkit implemented in 2009.

Recordkeeping Plan

Challenger Institute of Technology has an approved recordkeeping plan as prescribed by the State Records Act 2000. Moreover, as
prescribed by the State Records Commission Principles and Standards 2002 (Standard 2, Principle 6) Challenger is required to report
on the following. 

The efficiency and effectiveness of the record keeping system

An organisation’s record keeping system is to be evaluated not less than once every five years. In 2006, a Records Management
Baseline Audit was conducted by the Department of Education and Training (Internal Assurance Directorate) across all TAFE colleges
including Challenger. The objectives of this audit were to determine compliance with:

• the State Records Commission Standard 2 Record Keeping Plans, and

• the policies relating to government record keeping.

Some areas of improvement identified in that report include:

• Low usage of TRIM system.

• OSH Records.

• Recruitment and selection records.

• Disaster management plan for vital records.

• Policy and procedures.

• Retention and disposal schedules.

• Level of training and awareness in records management.

Most of these areas have either been, or are in the process of being addressed. For example:

• TRIM has been rolled out to nearly 120 staff (an increase of 100% on 2008).

• The Occupational Safety and Health Records team have been trained in the use of the TRIM records management system and
there has been a positive approach to capture these records. 

• Recruitment and selection records are now created at the time of the vacancy and registered in the TRIM records management
system.

• Although the disaster management plan was completed in early 2007, a review was undertaken in 2009 to identify vital records
and the backup of those records in the event of a disaster.

• A freedom of information procedure manual has been developed.

• All retention and disposal schedules have now been included in the TRIM records management system.

• Training and awareness in records management is being achieved through TRIM training and online record keeping awareness
training. 

Disclosures and Legal Compliance
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Record keeping training program

In 2008 Challenger implemented an online record keeping awareness training program to make staff aware of their record keeping
responsibilities. The final group of staff to be included in this roll-out phase was lecturers. This began in mid 2009 and has included
two main teaching areas: hospitality and human services, and the Peel region access, leadership, community and cultural
development.

The efficiency and effectiveness of the record keeping training program

The online record keeping training program is easily accessible by staff online and is set at a pace determined by the candidate. Most
candidates complete the course in one sitting with almost 100 per cent completing the assessment correctly. Fifty-five per cent of
staff completed the course in 2009.

The organisation’s induction program

The online record keeping awareness training program was fully integrated into Challenger’s formal induction program.

Corruption Prevention

In 2009, in accordance with Premier’s Circular 2005/02: Corruption Prevention, Challenger Institute of Technology delivered
workshops to managers and stakeholders in accountable and ethical decision making. Sixty-one managers and stakeholders attended
these workshops in 2009.

Occupational Safety and Health and injury management

Challenger is committed to achieving a workplace with zero injuries by providing and maintaining a healthy and safe working
environment for staff, clients and visitors.   

Staff, students and visitors have a collective responsibility and duty of care to comply with the Institute’s occupational safety and
health policies, procedures and guidelines. 

Formal mechanism for consultation with employees on OSH and Injury Management matters

In accordance with the Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984, six campus-based safety and health committees have been
established to provide consultation and cooperation between the Institute and its employees. Membership consists of managers and
safety and health representatives and the committees meet monthly to discuss and resolve issues, review hazards and incident
reports and monitor compliance against the Institute’s OSH Management Plan.

The committees are overseen by a Safety Leadership Group comprising senior executive managers and senior OSH advisers. 

Statement of compliance with the injury management requirements of the Workers’ Compensation and Injury Act 1981

Challenger Institute of Technology is committed to providing injury management and rehabilitation support to workers in accordance
with the Workers Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981.

The aim is to provide effective injury management and occupational rehabilitation for injured employees with the aim of returning
them to meaningful and productive work as soon as possible following a work related injury, illness or disability.  

Statement confirming that a self evaluation (annual) or external accredited assessment (within previous three years) of OSH
management systems has been completed that includes a summary of findings

Challenger makes continual improvements to its OSH Management System. To identify the system’s strengths and weakness over the
past two years the Institute has performed one internal and two external audits. In 2007 an external WorkSafe plan assessment was
conducted by an occupational safety and health consultant. In 2008 an Occupational Safety and Health AS/NZS 4801: 2001 Gap
Analysis was performed by SAI Global.  In 2009 an internal WorkSafe plan assessment was conducted by the principal occupational
safety and health adviser. The 2007 audit findings were the basis for establishing the Institute’s 2007-2009 OSH Management Plan.
Recent audit improvement findings have been placed as actions for the 2010 – 2012 OSH Management Plan.  

Disclosures and Legal Compliance
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Summary of findings

• Challenger managers demonstrate a strong commitment to occupational safety and health. 

• Well established processes are in place for OSH planning, consultation, hazard management and training.   

• Systems exist in which staff have access to occupational safety and health documentation and plans.  

• OSH training has been identified and opportunities are being provided for all employees. 

• Staff are regularly represented and consulted via management, safety representatives, safety and health committees and the Safety
Leadership Group. 

• Strategies have been implemented to ensure a safe learning environment for students. 

• There is strong occupational safety and health awareness throughout the Institute. 

Annual performance for 2008/09 against the following targets:

Number of fatalities
Target: 0
Actual 2008/09 fatalities: 0

Lost time injury incident rate
Target: 0 or 10% reduction on previous year
Actual 2008/09 LTI Incident Rate: 0.59
Outcome: 35% reduction 

Lost time injury severity rate
Target: 0 or 10% improvement on previous year
Actual 2008/09 LTI Severity Rate: 0
Outcome: 100% reduction 

Injury management and return to work 
100%

Percentage of managers trained in OSH and injury management responsibilities
60%

Disclosures and Legal Compliance
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SECTION 40 ESTIMATES FOR 2010

In accordance with Treasurer's Instructions 953 the annual estimates for the current financial year (i.e.2010) are
hereby included in the annual report. These estimates do not form part of the financial statement and are not
subject to audit.

Challenger Institute of Technology
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2010

$

COST OF SERVICES

Expenses

Employee benefits expense 53,777,401

Supplies and services 19,560,788

Depreciation and amortisation expense 5,142,940

Grants and subsidies 100,000

Cost of sales 708,970

Other expenses 5,471,399

Total cost of services 84,761,498

Income

Revenue

Fee for service 12,198,380

Student fees and charges 7,710,091

Ancillary trading 1,149,868

Sales 809,967

Commonwealth grants and contributions 100,000

Interest revenue 204,111

Other revenue 1,604,570

Total revenue 23,776,987

Total income other than income from State Government 23,776,987

NET COST OF SERVICES (60,984,511)

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

Service Appropriation 53,436,062

Resources received free of charge 1,540,000

Total income from State Government 54,976,062

(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD ( 6,008,449)
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Challenger Institute of Technology
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2010

$

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4,520,862

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,300,000

Inventories 255,000

Receivables 2,150,000

Other current assets 540,000

Total Current Assets 8,765,862

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 211,077,083

Total Non-Current Assets 211,077,083

TOTAL ASSETS 219,842,945

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Payables 3,200,000

Provisions 7,900,000

Other current liabilities 620,000

Total Current Liabilities 11,720,000

Non-Current Liabilities

Other non-current liabilities 2,630,000

Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,630,000

TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,350,000

NET ASSETS 205,492,945

EQUITY

Contributed equity 42,792,471

Reserves 132,239,977

Accumulated surplus 30,460,497

TOTAL EQUITY 205,492,945


